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TT VISA SERVICES LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

The directors present their annual report and financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Principal actlvities

The company's principal activity during the year continued to be that of a visa application centre processing visa
applications on behalf of Immigration New Zealand and biometric testing for Canada. The company had a
branch in Germany that closed during the year.

Golng concern

At 31 December 2020 the company had net liabilities of £440,304 {2019: £91,652) and net current liakilities of
£446,177(2019: £93,830). The financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis as VF Services
{UK) Limited, a fellow group undertaking, has agreed o provide financial support to the company in order that it
can continue to trade and meet its liabilities as they fall due.

Directors

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of signaiure of the financial statements were as
follows:

MrO J M De Canson (Resigned 9 March 2020)
Ms Y Tatwar
Mr P Damania (Appointed 9 March 2020)

Post reporting date events

There are no material events after the balance sheet date. Last year the company, along with all other
companies in the group, was affacted by the coronavirus pandemic however this situation is getting better,

Auditor

In accordance with the company's articles, a resolution proposing that John Cumming Ross Limited be
reappeointed as auditor of the company will be put at a General Meeting,

Statement of disclosure to auditor

The directors who held office at the date of approval of the directors' report confirm that, so far as the directors
are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the company's auditor is unaware, and esach director
has taken all the necessary steps that they ought to have taken as directors in order to make themselves aware
of all relevant audit information and to establish that the company's auditor is aware of that information.

This report has been prepared in accordance with the speciai provisions reiating t¢ small companies within Part
15 of the Companies Act 2006 and the Company is therefore exempt from the requirement to prepare a
Strategic Report.

On behalf of the board

Ms Y Talwar
Director

Date: 11/05/2021..




TT VISA SERVICES LIMITED

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
direciors have elected to prepare the financial statemenis in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice {United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company law
the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that pericd. In preparing
these financial statements, the directors are required to: ,
+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
» make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,
+ state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained In the financial statements; and
+ prepare tha financial statements an the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate io presume that the
company wili continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 20068, They
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reascnable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities,

On behalf of the board

Ms Y Talwar
Director

11{05/2021...
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBER OF TT VISA SERVICES LIMITED

OCpinlon

We have audited the financiai statements of TT Visa Services Limited {the 'company') for the year ended 31
Decamper 2020 which comprise the profit and loss account, the balance sheet, the statement of changes in
equity and notes to the financial statements, including significant accounting policies. The financial reperting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting

Standards, including FRS 101 'Reduced Disclosure Framework' (United Kingdom Generally Accepled
Accounting Practice).

In our cpinion the financial statements:
¢+ give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 December 2020 and of its loss for the
year then ended;
* have beep properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;
and
* have been prepared in accordance with the reguirements of the Companies Act 2008.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {UK} (iSAs (UK}) and applicable
law, Our responsibilities under those standards are further described In the Auditor's respansibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's
Ethical Standard, and we have {ulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Material uncertainty relating to going concern

We draw altention to Note 1.2 in the financial statements, which indicate that the company's tolal liabilities
exceeded iis tolal assels by £440,304. As stated in Note 1.2, these evenls or conditions, along with other malters
as sei forth in Note 1.2, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubl on the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Cther information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report other than the financial statements
and our auditor's report theraon. The directors are responsibte for the other information contained within the
annual report. Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except {c the
exlen! otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion therecn. Our
responsibiiity is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materiaily inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audi, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determineg whether this gives rise te a malerial misstatement in the financial
statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a malerisl
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing {o report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
(n our opinion, based on the work underiaken in the course of our audit:
« the information given in the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financiat statements are
preparad is consistent with the financial statements; and
s the directars’ report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal reguirements.




TT VISA SERVICES LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
TO THE MEMBER OF TT VISA SERVICES LIMITED

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

in the light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the directors' report.

We hé've nothing to repoert in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you if, in our opinion:

+ adequale accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have notf been received
from branches not visited by us; or

+ the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns,; or

» certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

+ the directors were not entitled to take advantage of the small companies' exemptions in preparing the
directors' report and from the requirement to prepare a strategic report.

Responsibiiities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statemenis and for heing satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due fo fraud or error. in preparing the financial statements, the
direciors are responsible for assessing the company's abilily to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as
appiicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the company cr {6 cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do
s0.

Auyditor's responsihiiities for the audit of the financial statements

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantiee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 1SAs (UK} will always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise
fram fraud or error and are considered materiai if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reascnably be
expected to influence the econcmic decisions of users iaken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procadures
in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities,
including fraud. The extent to which our procadures are capable of detecting irregularities, inciuding fraud, is
detalled below.

Discussions were heald with the directors with a view to identifying those laws and regulations that could be
expected to have a malerial impact on the financial statements. The cutcomes of these discussions and
enquiries were shared with the engagement team. During the engagement brisfing it was cansidered where and
how fraud may occur in the entity.

The following laws and regulations were identified as baing of significance tc the entity:
* The laws and regulations considered to have a direct effect on the financial statements include UK
financial reporting standards, Company law, Tax legislation and distributable profits legislation.
» Those laws and regulations considered o have a direct effect on the day to day operations of the
cempany include General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR)
* ltis considered that there are no laws and reguiations for which non-compliance may be fundamental 1o
the operating aspects of the business.




TT VISA SERVICES LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
TO THE MEMBER OF TT VISA SERVICES LIMITED

Audit procedures undertaken in response {o the potential risks relating to irregularities (which include fraud and
non-compliance with laws and regulations} comprised of inquiries of management and those charged with
governance as to whether the entity complies with such laws and regulations; enquiries with the same
cancerning any actual or potential litigation or claims; inspection of relevant legal correspondence; review of
board minutes; testing the appropriateness of entries in the nominal ledger, including journal entries; reviewing
transactions around the year end of the reporting pericd, and the perfarmance of analytical procedures to identify
unexpacted movements in account balances which may be indicative of fraud.

Neo instances of material non-compliance were identified. However, the likelihood of detecting irregularities,
including fraud, Is limited by the inherent difficulty in detecting irregularities, the effectiveness of the entity's
controls and the nature, timing and extent of the audit procedures performed. Irregularities that result from fraud
might be inherently more difficult to detect than irregularities that result from error. Thare is an unavoidable risk
that material misstatements may not be detected, even though the audit has been planned and performed in
accordance with he 1SAs (UK).

A further description of our responsibilities is available ¢n the Financial Reporting Council's wabsite at: https:/
www. frc.org. uk/auditorsresponsibilities, This description forms part of our auditor's report,

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume respcnsibility to anyone other than the company and the
company’'s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

ilip Unarket {Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on beha'.f of John Cumming Ross Limited
Chartered Certified Accountants and Statutory Auditors
1st Floor, Kirkland House
11-18 Peterborough Road
Harrow, Middlesex
HA1 2AX

A\ e5\ 202




TT VISA SERVICES LIMITED

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

2020
Notes E
Turnover 2 674,893
Cost of sales {891,369}
Gross (loss}/profit {216,476)
Administrative expenses (149,262)
Other cperating income 17,086
Parent company loan write back 3 -
Operating (loss)/profit 4 (348,652)
Amounts written off investments 6 -
(Loss)/profit before taxation (348,652)
Tax on {loss)/profit 7 -
{Loss)/profit and total comprehensive income

for the financial year (348,652)

2019
£

2,760,127
(2,404,316)

355,811

(271,446
1,793
5,590,557
5,676,715

(617)

5,676,008

5,676,088




TT VISA SERVICES LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

Notes

Fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets 8
Investments g

Current assets
Debtors 11
Cash at bank and in hand

Craditors: amounts falling due within

one year

Creditors 12
Taxation and social security

Net current liahilities

Total assets |ess current llabilities

Capital and reserves

Called up share capital 13

Profit and loss reserves

Total equity

2020

210,779
81,636

292 415

738,582

738,582

5,872

5,873

(446,177)

(440,304)

2
(440,306)

(440,304)

415973
360,286

776,269

869,828
71

889,889

2019

1,877

1,978

(93,630)

(91,652)

ro

(91,654)

(91.652)

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors and autherised for issue on 11157202—!

and are signed on its behalf by:

Ms Y Talwar
Director

Company Registration No, 03372675




TT VISA SERVICES LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Balance at 1 January 2019

Year ended 31 December 2019:
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year

Balance at 31 December 2019

Year ended 31 December 2020:
Loss and total comprehensive income for the year

Balance at 31 December 2020

Share Proflt and Total
capital loss
reserves

£ £ £

2 {b,767,752) (5,767,750)

- 5,676,098 5,676,098

2 (91.854) (91,652)

- (348,652)  (348,852)

2 (440,308)  (440,304)




TT VISA SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

1.1

Accounting policles

Company information

TT Visa Services Limited is a private company limited by shares incorporated and domiciled in England
and Wales. The registered office is C/O TMF Group, 8th Floor, 20 Farringdon Streset, London, United
Kingdom, EC4A 4AB. The company's principal activities and nature of its operations are disclosed in the
diractors' report,

Accounting convention

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101,
‘Reduced Disclosure Framework' (FRS 101). The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost conventien and in accordance with Companies Act 2008, The principal accounting policies
adopted are set out below.

The company has taken advantage of the following disclosure exemptions under FRS 101:

+ the requirementis of IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures;

+ the requirements of paragrapns 91-99 of IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurament:

* the requirement in paragraph 38 of IAS 1 'Preseniation of Financial Stataments' to present
comparative information in respect of: (i) paragraph 79{a) (iv) of IAS 1, (ii} paragraph 73(e} of IAS 16
Property Plant and Equipment (iii} paragraph 118 (g) of IAS 38 Intangibles Assets, (iv) paragraphs 76
and 79(d) of IAS 40 Investment Property and (v) paragraph 50 of I1AS 41 Agriculture;

+ the requirements of paragraphs 10(d), 10{(f), 16, 38A to 38D, 39 to 40 111 and 134-138 of IAS 1
Presentaticn of Financial Statements;

+ the requirements of IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows;

+ the requirements of paragraphs 30 and 31 of IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors;

* the requiremenis of paragraph 17 of IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures;

+ the requirements in |IAS 24 Related Party Disclesures to disclose related parly iransactions entered
into between two or mere members of a group, provided that any subsidiary which is a party to the
transaction is wholly owned by such a member ; and

¢ the requirements of paragraphs 134(d)-134(f) and 135(c)-135(e} of |AS 36 Impairment of Assets.

+ the requirements of the second sentence of paragraph 110 and paragraphs 113(a), 114, 115, 118, 119
(a) to (¢}, 120 to 127 and 129 of IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

Where required, equivalent disclosures are given in the group accounts of Kiwi VFS Sub | Sarl, a
company incerporated in Luxembeourg, The group accounts of Kiwi VFS Sub | S.a.r] are available to the
public and can be obtained from www.lbr.lu.

These financial statements present information about the company as an individual underiaking and not
about its group. The company is exempt by virtue of section 400 of the Companies Act 2006 from the
requirement to prepare group financial statements as it is a wholly owned subsidiary of Kiwl VFS Sub |
S.a.rl., a company incorporated in Luxembourg which preparas consolidated financial statements.




TT VISA SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

Accounting policies (Continued)

Going concern

At the balance sheet date the company nhad net liabilities of £440,304 (December 2618 net liabilities
£91,652). The cerenavirus (Covid-18) pandemic has had a material impact on the travel industry and
related services. From March 2020, many countries implemented measures to limit cross-horder
movement and to slow down public life in order to curtail the spread of Covid-18. As a consequence the
company clesed its visa application centre (VAC) for a period of time. After the first wave, starling from
May 2020, the VAC and visa calegories have gradually reopened in line with the easing of travel
restrictions by client governments and local restrictions but since QOclober 2020, there has been a second
wave leading the company to operate with restricied services. At the end of the financial year 2020 the
VAC continued to operate with reduced application volumes,

The company believes that the fundamental value drivers for the business remain intact and are supported
by secular growth trends. VF Services {UK) Limiled has confirmed that it will continue to provide such
financial support as necessary t¢ enable the company to meet s financial obligations as they fall due {ora
period of at least 12 months from the date of these financial stalements. The directors are satisfied thal Vf
Services (UK) Limited have sufficient avallable resources o provide such financial support despile
economic uncertainties arising as a result of the outbreak of a coronavirus (COVID-19) hased on
management's assessment of cashflow forecasts with realistic assumptions and sensitivities for
coranavirus (COVID-19). For this reason the directers consider it appropriate to prepare the financial
statements on the going concern basis.

Turnover

The company's turnover is derived from its aclivities as a visa application processing centre. Revenue
originates solely from the rendering of services and represents the aggregate amount of revenue
receivable for services supplied in the ordinary course of business. Payment of the transaction price for all
services is due immediately on receipt of the visa application. Revenue is recognised when the services
are fendered which, in many instances, is coterminous with payment as the sarvices are provided when
the customer visits the visa application centre. Where payment is received in advance a contract lizbility is
recognised until the sarvices are rendered.

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost or valuation, net of
depreciation and any impairment losses.

Depreciaticn is recognised so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets less their residual values over
their useful lives on the following bases:

Fixtures and fittings 25% per annum on a straight line basis
Plant and equipment 25% - 33.3% per annum on a straight line basis

The gain or loss arising on the disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale
proceeds and the carrying value of the asset, and is recognised in the profit and loss account.

Useful lives are estimated taking into account the rate of technological change and intensity of use of
assets and are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting pericd. An assef's
carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is
grealer than its estimated recoverable amount.

Fixed asset Investmants
Investments in subsidiaries are held at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

~10 -



TT VISA SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

Accounting policies {Continued)

impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At each reporting end date, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangibie and intangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that those assels have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impalrment loss,

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks spezific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have nol been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asse! is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amecunt of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does nct exceed the
carrying amount that would have teen determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant assel is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated
as a revaluation increase.

Fair value measurament

IFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidanca for all fair value measurements. IFRS 13 does not change
when an entity is required to use fair value, but rather provides guidance on how to measure fair value
under IFRS when fair value is required or parmitted. The company is exempt under FRS 101 from the
disclosure requirements of IFRS 13. There was no impact on the company from the adoption of IFRS 13,

Cash at bank and in hand
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term liquid

investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts Bank overdrafts are
shown within borrowings in current liabilities.

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as
reposted in the profit and loss account because it excludes iterns of income or expense that are taxabie or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The company's
tiability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting end date

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be ufilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition of other assets and Habilities in a transaction
that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit.

-1 -



TT VISA SERVICES LIMITED VT e

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

1

110

1142

113

Accounting policies {Continued)

Foreign exchange

Items included in the financial statements of the company are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the company operates ({'the functional currency"). The company has a
branch in Germany. The functional currency of the branch is Euro whilst the functional currency of the
company is Pounds Steriing. The financizl statements are presented in 'Pounds Sterling' (£).

Transactions in currancies other than pounds sterling are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. At each reporting end date, monelary assets and liabilities that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rales prevailing on the reporting end date. Gains
and losses arising on translaticn are included in the profit and less account for the period.

The results and financial position of the branch (which has the currency of a non hyperinflationary
economy) that has a functicnal currency different from the presentation currency is translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

{a) assets and liabilities for the balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of
that balance sheet ;

(b} income and expenses for the income statement are translated at average exchange rates and

(c} all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Debtors

Trade and other receivables are amounis due from customers for servicas performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection is expected in one year or less {or in the normal operating cycle of the
business, if longer), they are classified as current agsets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets,

Trade and other receivables are recognised initialiy at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cast using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

Craditors

Creditors are cbligations o pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
husiness from suppliers,

Creditors are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Share Capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Turnover
2020 2019
£ £
Turnover analysed by class of business
Turnover 674,893 2,760,127

12 -



TT VISA SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

2 Turnover {Continued)
2020 2019
£ £
Turnover analysed by geographical market
UK 674,893 2,780,127
3 Exceptional tems 2020 2019
£ £
Parent company foan write back - 5,590,557

During the previous year a loan of £5,590,557 due tc the immediate parent undertaking, Biomet Services
PTE. Lid, was writtan back after being waived by the parent undertaking.

4 Operating (loss}/profit

2020 2019
£ £

Operating (loss)/profit for the year is stated after charging/(crediting):
Exchange losses 63,301 1,336
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,875 319

5 Employees

The average monthly number of persons (inciuding directors) employed by the company during the year

was:
2020 201¢
Number Number
Headquarters 2 2

The Directors are remunerated by another company in the group. They received no remuneration in
respect of their qualifying services to the company.

6 Amounts written off investments

2020 2019
£ £
Other gains and losses - (617)

The investment in the subsidiary undertaking, TT Visa Services Inc., was impaired by £617 in the previous
year,

-1a3.-



TT VISA SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

7 Taxation

2020 2019
£ £
The charge for the year can be reconciled o the (loss)/profil per the profit and loss account as follows:

2020 2019

£ £

{Loss)/profit before taxation 4 (348,652) 5,676,098
Expected tax (credit)/charge based on a corporation tax rate of 19.00%

(2019: 18.00%) (66,244) 1,078,459

Effect of expenses not deductible in determining taxable profit 309 3,334

Income not taxable - (1,062,208)

Utilisation of {ax losses not previously recognised - (13,807)

Unutilised tax losses carrfed forward 70,565 -

Permanent capital allowances in excess of deprecialion (4,630) (5,780)

Taxation charge for the year - -

Taxable losses carried forward at the balance sheet date amounted to £4,470,176 (2019: £4,098,781),

The deferred tax asset has not been recognised on the grounds that the recoverabllity of the asset is
relatively uncertain based on the management expectations that it will take some time for the {ax iosses to
be relieved.

8 Tangible fixed assets

Fixtures and Plant and Total
fittings equipment
£ £ £

Cost
At 31 December 2019 ' 116 218,262 218,378
Additions 5770 - 5770
At 31 Degember 2020 5,886 218,262 224 148
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At 31 December 2019 116 216,285 216,401
Charge for the year 1,110 765 1,875
At 31 December 2020 1,228 217.050 218,276
Carrying amount )
At 31 December 2020 4,660 1,212 5872
At 31 December 2019 - 1,977 1,977

4.



TT VISA SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

9

10

Investments
Current
2020
£

investments in subsidiaries -

2019

Non-current

2020
£

-

2019

—_

The company has not designated any financial asssts that are not classified as held for trading as financial

assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Fair value of financial assets carried at amortised cost

Except as detailed below the directors believe that the carrying amounts of financial assets carried at
amortised cost in the financial statements approximate to their fair valiues.

Movements in fixed asset investments

Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2020 & 31 December 2020

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2020

At 31 December 2019

Subsidiaries

Details of the company's subsidiaries at 31 December 2020 are as follows:

Name of undertaking Registarad office Class of
shares held
TT Visa Servicas Inc. 1120 19th Street, NW Suite 415, Washington DC Ordinary
20036

Shares in
group
undertakings

£

% Held
Direct Voling

100.00 100.00
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TT VISA SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

g

12

13

14

Debtors
2020 2019
£ £
VAT recoverable 4,186 -
Amount cwed by parent undertaking ‘ 6,215 30,856
Amounts owed by fellow group undertakings 62,286 39,490
Other deblors 121,008 345,827
Prepayments and accrued income 17,086 -
210,779 415,973

Amounts due from the parent undertaking and fellow group undertakings are unsecured, interast free and
repayable on demand.

Creditors
2020 2019
£ £
Trade creditors 944 16,943
Amount owed to parent undertaking - 39,936
Amotunts owed to subsidiary undertakings 31,989 23,364
Amounts owed fo related parties : 591,973 716,116
Accruals and deferred income 113,686 74,469
738,592 869,828

Amaounts due to the parent undertaking, subsidiaries and fellow group undertakings are unsecured, interest
free and repayable on demand.

Share capital 2020 2019
£ £

Ordinary share capital

Authorised, Issued, Allotted, Called up and fully paid

2 Qrdinary shares of £1 each 2

3]

Controlling party

The company's immediate parent undertaking is Biomet Services PTE. Ltd, a company incorporated in
Singapore whose registered office is 87 UBI Crescent, #06-01 Technigues Center, Singapore 408560, The
company's ultimate parent undertaking is Kiwi Holding | S.a.r.l, a company incorporated in Luxembourg
whose registered office is 26A Boulevard Reyal, L-2449 rue Aldringen 23, L-1118. Luxembourg. The
smallest and largest group in which the results of the company are consclidated is that headed by Kiwi VFS
Sub | S.a.r.l., an intermediate parent undertaking within the group.

-16 -
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MANAGEMENT REPORT

The Management Report has been prepared to provide infarmation to the shareholders to assess how Man-
agement has performed their duties to promote the success of VFS Global. Where the report contains forward-
iooking statements, the management makes these in good faith based on information available to them at the
date of approval of the report.

The Management Report has been prepared for VFS as a whole and therefore gives greater emphasis t¢
matters, which are relevant to Kiwi VFS Sub | S.4.c.] (the "Company") and its subsidiaries {ccllectively "VFS
Global" or "VFS” or “the Group”) related to VFS business when viewed as a whole.

BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY

Visa & Passport Processing Services

The visa outsourcing business model was pioneered by VFS and specifically, current CEQ, Zubin Karkaria,
in 2001 and up to the Covid-19 pandemic (the "Pandemic”) in 2020, the industry has experienced significant
growth. VFS is the market leader, driven by technological knowledge and experience of the miss.on critical
nature of operations far clients, which has been developed over a number of years. Moreover. the multi-year
nature of the contracts, high client retention rates and new business tender success rates ensure stability ard
more so drives growth with regards to financial performance of VFS. The outsourcing trend is expected 10
continue as governments increasingly rely an outsourcing providers to manage rising visa application numoers
and as they benefit from VFS’ global presence, expertise, flexibility and efficiency.

Whilst the Pandemic undoubtedly has and will cantinue to have a short-to-mid-term effect on the travel market,
the long-term trend remains supportive of a resilient growth trajectory. This is coupled with favorable visa
trends, driven by a global concern regarding security threats and background health (inc. vaccination & PCR)
checks, migration control and increased outsourcing by governments, are expected to further strangthen at-
tractiveness of visa outsourcing.

VFS has a full product suite offering across both traditional and digital visas, where VFS continuas to refine
its digital solutions with an aim ta develop and launch innovative digital focused products and soluticns in
2020,VFS continued to grow its passport services business which provide governments the ability to out-
source the processing of passport applications (new issues, renewals etc.) of expatriates living in overscas
lccaticns. Similar to the visa outsourcing market at inception, VFS believe there is a strong outsourcing op-
portunity within passport services and VFS is weli placed to handle the front-end services given its track record
and capability in visa services, Furthermore, VFS centinue to expect synergistic benefits as this product would
be serviced almost entirely from existing visa infrasiructure. VFS is confident of centinuing our market lea-
dership in identifying and addressing technology and digital advancements of our core visa market whilst also
addressing new product or user markets.

Despite the significant impact of the Pandemic, VFS’ resilient business model, driven by the variety of visa
categories available to applicants {including many non-discretionary categories including work. student and
long-term settlement} as well as in-country citizen services passport and other consular services - has enab-
led VFS to recover its business more quickly. Furthermore, the exclusive nature of the majority of VFS
contracts places it in a stronger position as travel corridors continue te reopen post the pandemic compared
to other businesses in the travel and travel related sectors. This is because travellers have to use VFS for
these exclusive routes and VFS does not have to adjust the pricing of its services due to excess capacitly as
seen in other travel markets such as airline and hotel markets. ‘

KEY DEVELOPMENTS DURING THE YEAR

2020 was an unprecedented year for all companies/groups, nonetheless those operating in the travel ard
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travel related services sectors. VFS started 2020, with good momentum carried over from 2019. From robust
travel volumes in January and February 2020, travel volumes came to a complete standstill as the world
witnessed an unimaginable sacio-economic crisis. in early March 2020, the Worid Health Qrganization (WHO)
declared Novel Coronavirus, Covid-18, a global pandemic. Over 2 million lives were tragically lost to Pangemic
in 2020, millions were infected and hundreds of miflions of lives were disrupted. In mid-March 2020 due to
increasing number of cauntries announcing lockdowns and travel bans, VFS were forced to suspend Visa
Application Centre (VAC) operaticns. Globally VFS had to temporarily shut down its VACs up to May 2020,

The economic impact of the Pandemic has been disastrous, and the travel and tourism sector is perhaps the
worst hit with most countries announcing lockdowns and strict travel restrictions/bans to contain the virus.
Glchal tourism suffered its worst year on record in 2020, with nternational arrivals dropping by 74% according
to the latest data from the World Tourism OQrganization (UNWTQ). These measures directly impacteg VFS's
business.

VFS s immediate priorities were to safeguard the health and safety of staff and customers, and also to ensure
the sustainability of the company’'s liquidity. Despite the scale and the severity of the Pandemic, VFS re-
sponded swiftly to ensure safety and business continuity. VFS introduced extensive health measures both in
its offices and visa application centres to ensure the safety of its staff and at the same time ensure business
continuity.

Various enhanced health and safety protocols and policies were implemented to drive greater awareness and
ensure a safer work environment for its staff and for customers visiting its VACs. VFS Giobkal launched its
“Work from Home'" programme in March 2020 which continues to run even up tc today for all staff who do
not mandatorily have to be in the office to carry out their respansibilities. VFS also launched an expansive
“Learn from Home" initiative to upskili and refresh the skill sets of the staff by offering a range of online
learring and deveicpment courses. About 81% of all employees enrolled for one or more courses during 2020

To support and enhance VF$'s liquidity position the management has implemented significant cost reduction
act.ons and developed focused working capital and cash management strategies. With staff costs being its
most significant aperating cost, the management immediataly sought to right-size the operational footprint in
line with VFS's recovery outlook. VFS has reduced its headcount substantially and implemented salary reduc-
tions and furloughs across the organisation. The management also implemented significant cost saving ac-
tions in other areas through rental renegotiations and waivers, reduction in travel and marketing costs and
renegotiation of professional service fees. A significant preportion of the cost saving actions are structural and
permanent in nature, which will enhance the mid to long term profitability of VFS. Furthermore, VFS's liquidity
was significantly strengthened through swift and decisive suppon from our owners and lenders.

VFS initiated multiple revenue enhancement actions via expanding the scope of and increasing sales of Vaiue-
Added Services (VAS) offerings. The management alsc initiated a focused dialogue with client governments
to negotiate fee increases and obtain permissions for additional VAS products. The management's concen-
trated revenue enhancement efforts led to notable increase in revenue per application. The management is
gratefu! to our client governments for their help and support during the crisis.

Tne management also launched our most significant and strategic project to date with the objective of trans-
forming VFS business modei to make it even more efficient, resilient, sustainable and profitable in the mid to
long term. All these measures and initiatives taken, allow presenting the 2020 accounts under a going concern
assumption.

In addition, VFS have launched several new products and initiatives in 2020, including an online bocking
service for Covid-19 tests. To date VFS offers this service across 40 countries and have registered cver

40.300 bookings. This service also positions VFS strongly to offer other visa-related medical services to client
governments in the future.
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Considering the challenges and uncertainty faced in 2020, the management is pleased to confirm that VFS
nas performed admirably by both securing its short to mid-term liguidily by achieving and developing revenue
enhancement, cost reduction and liguidity management strategies, whilst taking demonstrable actions to sup-
port the significant enhancement of profitability in the mid to long term.

As at 31 December 2020, VFS had 3,482 application centres (2019: 3.315} operating in 144 countres 12919
146) serving 64 client governments (2019 84). The Group processed over 7 million applications r 2020, Of
our 64 client governments, we have served 44 for more than six years and 25 out of 44 for more tha 11
years.

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Managers consider the following items to be key performance indicators (“KPIs") for VFS overalil.

Operational and Financial Indicators i 12 months 12 months end-
ending ing

oS
31Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019 2020 vs 2019 %

Operational Statistics

Number of government clients (year-end) B84 B4 -
Number of application centres (year-end) 3.482 3,315 5.0%
Appiications processed (million)®? 7.3 30.3 -75.9%
Number of employees {year-end} 7,773 11,437 -32.0%
Income Statement (in CHF m)
Revenue and other operating income 239.6 748.6 -68.0%
EBITDA -55.8 218.1 -125.6%
EBITDA Margin % -23.3% 29.1% -5240bps
EBITA -113.6 155.6 -173.0%
EBITA Margin % -47.4% 20.8% -6820bps
Non-GAAP measures®
Qperating EBITDA -39.8 240.0 -116.6%
Operating EBITDA Margin % -16.6% 32.0% -4860bps
Operating EBITA -103.0 172 .4 -159.8%
Operating EBITA Margin % -43.0% 23.0% -66006ps
Selected Balance Sheet Statistics
QOperating cash conversion ratio%* NA 89.6% NA

Notes

{1) The indicators are not comparable on account of COVID-19

(2) Application count presented on a reported basis

{3) Non GAAP measures includes non-operating items which are one-off non-operational items (i.e. costs incurred for business ecqu-
sitions. start-up fosses of new ventures, cost refated to non-operating projects and non-operational Covid related costs) that were
incurred during the reporting period (refer to note 30 of consolidated financial statements)

{4} Operating cash conversion ralio is calculated by dividing Operating Cashfiow by Operating EBITDA less lease paymerts (irciuding
interest) (refer note 30 of consolidated financial statements), 2020 operating cash conversion is not caiculated due to losses

VFS was significantly impacted by the Pandemic in 2020 with revenue and other operating income ¢f CHF
239.6 miflion (2019: CHF 749.6 million}. Visa applications processed in 2020 decreased to 7.3 million (2019:
30.3 million applications). Operating EBITA decreased sharply in financial year 2020 to CHF {103.0) milion
fram CHF172.4 million in financial year 2018,
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2020 REVENUES AND OTHER OPERATING 2019 REVENUES AND OTHER
INCOME N % [CHF 240 million) OPERATING INCOME IN % (CHF 750
Soutn Asia million)
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2 (APAC)
Americas 19%

Americas CIS + 8% CIS + Europe
10% Europe 18% 3%

Snirrce Rased nn fill vear view Manasement view

Overall VFS's revenues remain globally diversified with a larger proportional share in emerging markets where
bath the passport strength and penetration are low and outbound trave! growth is higher. VFS's large presence
in India, Russia, China and other emerging markets positions it strongly to take advantage of the growth rates
projected for these source markets.

As at December 31 2020, VFS has 7773 (2019 11,437} employees.
FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

VFS has seen a consistent increase in applicant counts since it restarted operations in May 2020. This has
been driven by the easing of lockdowns, resumption of air travel and restarting of visa application acceptance
by our clients. We have seen strong performance from several areas including land routes, nen-discretionary
visa categories (in particular work and student} and in-country services {in particuiar passport renewal appl-
cal.ons).

Multiple Covid-19 vaccines have heen approved by regulatory health authorities in fast quarter of 2020 and
roilout of the vaccines has commenced in all of our major markets fike Scuth Asia, Midale East and Europe.
The management expects extant Q4 of 2020 volumes to carry into Q1 of 2021 before a modest recavery takes
place during Q2 of 2021 that increases gradually during the second half of 2021, where the management has
some resumption in discretionary travel (in particular leisure). VFS are already starting to see positive travel
trends in markets which have vaccine roilouts firmly in place which will further support travel relaxation
measures.

Conversely, a slower rolfout of vaccines giobally as well as reduced efficacy of vaccinations due to new strains
of the virus, could reduce the recavery rate in 2021 and VFS could see additional trave! restrictions being
initiated. or where bans that have been previcusly lifted are reinstated due o resurgence of the virus. From
Decembier 2020 onwards, there have been instances where cases of Covid-18 have started to increase again
after a periog of decline.

Nc one has visibility into when remaining restrictions will be [ifted, or any short or fong-term changes to con-
sumer travel behaviour patterns when travel restrictions, and other government restrictions and mandates are
fully lifted. Accordingly, the full extent of the impact of the Covid-13 pandemic on VFS business aperaticns.
liquidity and financial condition are difficult to predict.

As per the management, the current expectations a full business recovery to pre-crisis lavels is not expected
untit 2023 and the situation still remains quite volatiie. The management is confident that once the vaccings
are successiully rolled out globally, trave! will recover sharply and continue its steady upward trajectory over
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the long term. The management believes its continuing cost discipline. improved structure and efficiency
measures put in place will enable VFS to capitalise significantly on the sharp upswing in travel once travel
restrictions are relaxed.

VFS structural growth drivers remain intact with international travel volumes continuing to grow and appetite
for international travel remains strong, driven by economic growth and rising incomes across all major geo-
graphic regions, the rise of the middle class and passpon penetration in emerging markets {in particuiar APAC

and South Asia) and an increase in overall travel spend amid growing urbanisation and globalisation. ard
decreasing travel costs,

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
The principal risks and uncertainties, which are common to the Group and Company are:
Geopolitical and travel disruption

Travel facilitators such as VFS are exposed to inherent risk of incidents, which may impact travel demard and
patterns. Incidents can include natural catastrophes. outbreak of disease or geopolitical instability. V=S serves
64 missions across 144 countries, enabling it to offset downturns in some destinaticns with strong perfor-
mance in others in the case of country or region-specific disruptions. Nevertheless, slower global rallout of
vaccines and second or third waves of the virus resulting from mutations may result in additional restricticns
being initiated or re-initiated which could severely dent recovery prospects.

Consumer demand

Whilst VFS clients are sovereign governments, the end consumer or visa applicant drives demand for VFS
services. Spending on travel is largely discretionary and price sensitive. Countries are at different stages in
the economic cycle at any one time. In the case of recession or slowdown of general economic activity, con-
sumers often cut back on travel spend. Changes in consumer demand may impact the group's short-term
growth rates and margin expectations. However, the current macro environment across key regions {i.e. South
Asia and MENA) is broadly positive. Moreover, VFS has operations in 144 countries enabling it to m:tigate
this risk to a large extent. VFS alsc serves applicants across a broad range of visa requirements incluzing
both discretionary {leisure, business) and non-discretionary {work. reiocation, employment, religicus) catego-
ries, which also mitigates the consumer demand risk.

Information Security and Data Protection

The Group has a responsibility to protect the confidentiaiity, integrity and availability of customer data as part
of its operations. Furthermore, the global regulatory enviranment is changing with many countries enacting
laws that require VFS to host data within the respective country bolundaries. The Group maintain nigh stand-
ards of information security by undertaking reguiar IT security audits, periodic vuinerability assessment and
penetration testing. VFS strictly adheres to a purging policy whereby information about an applicant which 1s
classified as personally identifiable {&.g. full name, date of birth, passport number, street address, emaii ad-
dress and phone numbers) is deleted after an agreed upaon period of time (most commonly after the passport
is returned to the applicant). VFS is comphant with relevant Eurcpean legislation relating to data protection.
including Directive 95/46/EC, GDPR and with the provisions contained within the EU Visa Code.

VFS has also implemented the ‘Information Security Management System’ {ISMS) and has been certified for

ISO 27001:2013 standard for all visa application centres by an accredited certification body, TUV SUD: Ger-
many.
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Financial related risks

The Group's principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise borrowings, trade and other paya-
bles and lease liabilties. The Group's principal financial assets include trade and other receivables. and cash
and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations. The Group also enters into derivative transactions
for interest rate fluctuations, The hedge accounting policy is prepared to comply with the hedge accounting
requirement under IFRS 8 "Financial Instruments’.

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and fiquidity risk. The Group’s senior management cversees
the managerrent of these risks. The Group’s senior management is supported by the Corporate Treasury
Department that advises on thancial nsks and the apuiopriate finoncial rigk governanre framework for the
Group. It is the Group's policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes may be undertaken. The
Board of Directors of VFS Global AG (indirect subsidiary of the Company) reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks, which are summarised below:

1. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of fulure cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Key market risk includes interest rate risk and currency risk.
Financial instruments are affected by market risk include borrowings, deposits, derivative financial in-
struments.

a) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk because it barrows funds at floating interest rates. The floating
rate risk is managed by the group by the use of interest rate swap and cap contracts. Currently, hedging
in place covers approximately 11.3% (201%: 52.6%) of the loan principal outstanding. The decrease in
hedging is due to the closure of existing hedge contracts in 2020 and not renewed based on market
circumstances. As a prudent strategy, Group has undertaken selective hedges to cover its near-term
interest rate risk. In the present circumstances, interest rates are trading at their lowest levels due to
global economic conditions. Hedging aclivities are evaluated regularly to align with the interest rate
views and defined risk appetite, ensuring the most cost-effective hadging strategies are applied.

b} Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fiuctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group's exposure ta the risk of changes in foreign
exchange rates relates primarily to the Group's operating activities (when revenue or expense I1s de-
nominated in a foreign currency) and the Group’s net investments in foreign subsidiaries. The major
currencies giving rise to currency risk for the Group are the Pound sterling, US dollar, and Eure.

Most of the Group's operating incame and expense exposure is naturally hedged by setting off receiv-
ables and payables. The currencies of debt are aligned with currencies of operational cash flows to
mitigate currency nsk ¢n interest serving. The Group does not hedge against the foreign currency risks
associated with its net investment in foreign entities or the related foreign currency transiation of local
earnings,

2. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligaticns under a financial instrument or cus-
tomer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its financing activi-
ties, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other
financial instruments. Credit risk from balances with bank is managed as per the Group’s policy.
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Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties.

3. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that Group may be unable to meet its financial obligations when these become
due for payment. The fiquidity position of the Group is significantly influenced by the service feg col-
lected on visa applications processed. Given the ongeing business environment risk and recovery pro-
file of volumes, VFS is closely monitoring its liquidity to maintain it at adequate levels. with weekly ard
monthly reperts to Chief Financial Officer and the use of several simulation and cash management
tools. This is dane partly by maintaining liquidity reserves to even out the usual fluctuations :n liguiaity
levels and needs,

VFS did not undertake any research and development activities during the period and no Group entities cvned
shares or had voting rights in the Company during the period.

This report was approved and signed on behalf of the Board on 11 March 2021.
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Ashish Fatel Thibaut Paillard
Head Commercia! Operations Head Accounting and Group Controller
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Audit report

To the Shareholders of
Kiwi VFS SUBI S.ar.l.

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our opinion

In our opinien, the accompanying consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of Kiwi VFS SUB I S.arl {the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
‘Group™ as at 31 December 2020, and of its cansoiidated financial performance and its consclidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with international Financial Reporiing Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the Eurcpean Union.

What we have audited
The Group's consclidated financial statements comprise:

» the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020,

» the consolidated income statement for the year then ended,;

» the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

» the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended:;

s the consclidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

+ the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting
policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Law of 23 July 2016 on the audit profession (Law of
23 July 2018) and with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as adopted for Luxembourg by the
‘Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier” {CSSF). Our responsibilities under the Law of
23 July 2016 and I1SAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF are further described in the
‘Respensibilities of the "Réviseur d’entreprises agrée” for the audit of the consoclidated financial
statements” section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants, inciuding [nternational independence Standards, issued by the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants ({ESBA Code) as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to cur audit of the consolidated financial statements. We have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities under those ethical requirements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 2 to these consolidated financial statements, which indicates the significant
impact of the Covid-19 (coronavirug) on the Group's operations, revenues and financial position. it also

PricewaterhouseCoopers, Société coopérative, 2 rue Gerhard Mercator, B.P. 1443, L-1014 Luxemboury
T: 4352 go4R48 1, F 1 4352 494843 2900, nunp puelu

Cubinet de révision agréé, Expert-comprable (autorisetion gouternementale n°106028256)
R.C.S Luxembourg B 65 477 - TVA LU25482518
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described actions taken and planned to manage those impacts with internal and external measures COur
cpinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other information

The Board of Managers is responsible for the other information. The other information comorisas the
information stated in the Management repert but does not include the consolidated financial s:atemeants
and our audit report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance cenclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consoldated financial statements, our responsibility is ‘¢ reac the
other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowiedge obtained in the audy. or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the werk we have performed, we corcuce
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibiiities of the Board of Managers for the consolidated financial statements

The Board of Managers is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, and for such irternal
control 25 the Board of Managers determines is necessary to anable the preparation of consaldated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated finarcial statements, the Board of Managers is responsible for assessirg
the Group’s ability te continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to goirg
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Managers either irtenas
to liguidate the Group or to cease operations, ¢r has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Responsibilities of the “Réviseur d’entreprises agréé’ for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements

The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an audit report that includes our opinion Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Law of 23 July 2016 and with 1SAs as
adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF wiil aiways detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or .n tre
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to infiluence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

11
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As part of an audit in accardance with the Law of 23 July 2016 and with ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg
by the CSSF, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

.

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consciidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit pracedures responsive ta thase risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for cur apinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error.
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal contral;

obtain an understanding of internal contro! relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control;

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reascnableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Managers;

conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Managers' use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 2 material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. if we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
audit report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, tc modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our audit report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern;

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and cantent of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation;

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities and
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

12
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies n
internal control that we identify during cur audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

The Management report is consistent with the consolidated financial statements and has beer prepared
in accordance with appiicable legal requirements.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, Société coopérative Luxembourg, 11 March 2021
Represented by

*h s s £ gnad by
sern e etebun

oy

Véronigue Lefebvre
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Consolidated statement of financial position
In ZHF million
31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019
Assets Notes
Non-current assets
Property. plant and equipment 8 36.9 50.8
Right-of-use assels 9 B1.7 1087
irtangible assets 10 238.9 289.0
Soodwll 11 9501 876.0
nvestiments accounted for using the equ-ty method® 12 nn
Deferred tax assefs 7 17.6 90
Nen-cutrent financial assels 15 16,2 20.8
Nen-cuTent income tax receivables 5.3 67
Cltier nen-current assels 16 - 13.2
Total non-current assets 1,346.7 1,474.2
Current assets
Current financial assets
Trade receivables 13 16.0 28.4
Cash and cash equivalents 14 135.3 86 7
ther current financial assets 15 20.5 243
Otner current assets 16 191 263
Total current assets 190.9 166.3
Total assetls 1,537.6 1,640.5
Equity and liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Nen-current financial llabilities
Non-current borrowings 17 944.7 820.4
Nor-current lease habilities 9 51.4 71.3
her non-current financial liabilties 19 39.5
Otaer non-current habilities 20 1.0 0.4
Zeferred tax liabilities 7 61.3 T74.4
Nea-current provisions 21 14.9 14.8
Total non-current liabilities 1,112.8 981.3
Current liahilities
Current inancial liabilities
Cusrent borrowings 17 628 7.8
Trade and other payables 18 123.6 166.1
Current [ease liabilities g 40.4 354
Cther current financial liabilities 19 204 76.4
Oter current liabilnies 20 47.3 379
Surrent tax labilities 5.8 M7z
Curtent provisions 21 88 83
Total current liabilities 308.4 343.8
Total liabilities 1,421.2 1,324.9
Equity
Srare capital 22 159 16.9
Reserves 22 100.3 2994
Equity attributable to owners of Kiwi VFS Sub ) S.a.r) 116.2 318.3
Non-cerolling imerests 23 0.2 0.3
Total equity 116.4 315.6
Total equity and Liabilities 1,537.6 1,840.5

Tarourtis below rounding off norms adootec by the Group

vz apeove consolidated statement of inancia) position should be rean 11 carjunction with the accompanying notes

Kiv, " F33Suc 1 5.a-| —Cansohdated financial statemeats 2020 Page 14128
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EST. 2o
in CHF millicn
2020 201¢
Notes

Revenue 2 238 1 7415
Other operating income 2 1.5 8."
Application processing and support service expenses (59.3) 1774
Personnel expenses 3 (150,39 12278
Rent and facilities expenses {17.3) 132.4)
IT and communication expenses (24.2) 28.0
Cirer operating expenses 4 (43.1) (70.m
Earnings/(loss} before financial result, taxes, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) {55.8) 2181
Depreciation 81 (57.8) 162.5)
Amortisation of intangible assets acquired through business combination 10 (40.0; 149,23
Amartisation of other intangible assets 10 {6.5) 5.8)
Impairment of other intangible assets 10 (4.3)
Earnings/{loss) before financial result and taxes {(EBIT) (164.9) 100.6
Financial result 6 (20.4) 1373
Earnings/{loss) before taxes (EBT) {185.3) 69.3
income tax benefits/(expenses) 7 17.9 131.6}
Net result/(loss) {167.4) 377

Attributable to awners of Kiwi VFS Sub | S.a.rl (167.3) 377

Attributable to non-controlling interests” 0.1 0.C

* amount 1s below rounding off norms adopted by the Graup.

The above consolidated income statement should be read 1n corjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

tn CHF million

Net result/{loss)

Other comprehensive income/{loss) {(OCl}
itams that may he reclassified to income siaterment

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
izxchange differences on transiation of foreign operations reclassitied to consolidated incurme sldle-
ment dug to change n contral

Cash flow hedge reserve**
Zost of hedging reserve™
Income tax benefits/(expenses) relating to these items™

tems thal will not be reclassified to income statement
Re-measurement of post-employment benefit obligations/(assets)
Income tax benefits/(expenses) relating to these items™

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year
Attritutable to owners of Kiwi VFS Sub | S.ard
Atributable to non-contrelling interests®
" amouJrt s below rounding off norms adopted by the Group.
** Juning the financial year 2020, for instruments that have been expired, the amount has been reclassified
¢ consolidated income statement.

Notes

Tha anove consolidated statement of comprenensive Income should be read In conjunction with the accompanying notes.

<% VF33ubl Sarl - Consolidated financial statements 2020

2020 2019
(167.4) 377
(208)  (04)
. 01

0.4 0.2
{0.1) 0.1
0.0 0.0
(13.0y  (01)
0.0 0.0
{200.9)  37.6
(200.8) 375
0.1 0.0
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VFS.GLOBAL

EST. 2001
Consolidated statement of cash flows
in CHF millicn 2020 2019
Notes
Cash flows from operating activities
Net result/(loss) (167.4) 37.7
income tax (benefitsy/expenses 7 (17.9) 316
Financial result 6 20.4 313
Oeprecratian, amortisation and impairment 88110 109.1 "M7s
Allowance for credit loss 13 6.0 3.6
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 1.3 06
Cther non-cash expenses/(income) (3.8) 24
Operational foreign exchange loss unrealised 2.4 3.2
Changes in net working capital
- (increase)/Decrease in financial assets 18.1 13C.2)
- {Increase}/Decrease in other assets 8.2 17
- Increase/{Decrease) in financial and other liabilities (33.1) 250
- Increase/{Decrease) in provisions 0.5 11
Income taxes paid {8.3) 42 1)
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from operating activities {64.5) 194.8
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of preperty, plant and eguipment (12.4) {25.9)
Purchase of intanginie assets 5.2) {1823
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipmert® 0.0 12
Payment to acquire subsidiaries, net of cash acgurred i - (22)
Payment of contingent consideration to acquire subsidiaries 19 - (1€ 2)
Investment in bank deposits (having maturity of more than three months) 15 {1.8) C.%
Interest received 1.2 18
Net cash (outflow) from investing activities (18.3) (56.0)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from financial debts 17 196.7 2.8
Repayment of financial debts 17 (1.1 (.13
Capital contribution from owners 22 1.7 -
Lease payments {including interest) 9 {31.0) {42 4)
Deferred payment to acguire non-controlling mterests 23 {14.2} 1GE 5)
Interest and other bank charges paid {31.9} {3€.0
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from financing activities 123.2 1148.2)
Currency transiation 82 32
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 48.6 {9.2}
Cash and cash equivalents at beginmng of year 86.7 95.9
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 14 135.3 B5.7

* amount 15 beiow rounding off norms adopted by the Group.

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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EST. 2001

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Main accounting principles
1. General Information

Kiwi VFS Sub | S.a.r.l {"the Company") was established on April 37, 2017 and is domiciled in 26A, Boulevard
Ruval, L-2449 Luxembourg, R.C.§ Luxembourg B 214.0268 The Company is a fully-owned subsidiary of Kiwi
Holding IV S.a.r.] ("Kiwi IV") since its incorporation.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020 covers the Company and all its
subsidiaries (collectively "VFS Global” or "the Greup”) related to VFS business. In addition, the Group has
aiso prepared consolidated financial statements for tne year ended December 31, 2020 at VFS Global AG
(VFSG).

VF3 Global is the world's largest visa outsourcing and technoiogy services specialist for governments and
dip.omatic missions worldwide. The Group manages the administrative and non-judgmenital tasks related 1o
visa, passport, identity management and other citizen services for its client governments. This enables the
client governments to focus entirely on the critical task of assessment.

2. Basis of preparation

In crder to fulfill the lender requirements in the context of the external debt, the consolidated financial state-
ments of the Group have been prepared in accerdance with Internaticnal Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) as adopted by the European Union as of December 31, 2020.

The conselidated financial statements comprise a consolidated statement of financial position, a consolidated
ircome statement, a consolidated statement of comprehensive incame, a cansolidated statement of changes
in equity, a consolidated statement of cash flows and the accompanying notes to the consclidated financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2020,

Tre consolidated financial statements are based on historical costs. Certain financial assets and financial
liatilties are measured at fair value in the consolidated statement of financial pasition. Detailed disclosures
on measurement are provided in the summary of significant accounting policies. These policies have been
corsistently applied to all the reporting periods presented. unless otherwise stated.

The Corona virus {Covid-19) has had a material impact on the trave! industry and related services. From
Ma-ch 2020. many countries implemented measures to Imit cress-border movement and to slow down public
life in arder to curtail the spread of Covid-19. As a consequence, VFS Group closed most of its visa application
certres (VACs) in almost all of its source countries for weeks or even months. Since March 2020, due to
restrictions of its client governments or local authorities in the source countries, the client governments have
restricted the available visa categories and visa availability. After the first wave, starting from May 2020. VACs
anc visa categories have gradually reopened in line with the easing of travel restrictions by client governments
and local restrictions in source countries. Furthermore, VFS Global's diversified and exclusive contract port-
folio has supported the recovery of applicant volumes where local lockdowns have been lifted in 2020. In
particular the split between ground and air routes as well as the wide variety of visa categories provided
{(including work. student, medical as well as tourism and business) has meant that applicant volumes have
been steadily recovering on a consistent basis since May 2020. At the end of the financial year 2020, 50% of
the VACs have been reopened but operate often with reduced application volumes. Late 2020 onwards. new
strains of the virus appeared and the roll out of the vaccines started in certain regions.

<iw F35up 1S acl —Consoldaled inancial Statements 202¢ Faga #2179
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The Covid-18 pandemic caused a material impact on VFS Group's operating and financial performance and
ts financial position. As a consequience, revenue for the financial year 2020 has decreased by 68% to SHF
238.1 million (2019 CHF 741.5 million), operating EBITDA has decreased from CHF 240.0 million n 20 91c
CHF (39.8) million in 2020 and operating cash flow has decreased from GHF 177.6 miltion in 2018 to CHF
(96.2) million in 2020 {refer note 30),

VFS Group reacted quickly and decisively to the outbreak of the Covid-19 crisis and the associated s-gnif.cant
decline of application volumes and revenues. by initiating revenue enhancement measures, wide-ranging cost
cutting and cash saving measures across all global operations and functions in order to conserve liguidity
including:

¢ the support from client governments in the form of higher service fees, expanded value added sar-
vices, reduced operational requirements or other concessions,

s the significant reduction in workforce,

s the suspension of pay increase and even temporary salary reductions across almest the ertire v.ork-
force,

+ the introduction of short time working hours in European and other countries,

« the negotiation of lease concessions from landlords to reduce, temporarily waive or defer lsase nay-
ments,

s the re-negotiation of contracts with suppliers and business partners to reduce costs and change nay-
ment terms.

« the particrpation in local government support programs available in the source countries,

+ and a substantial reduction in capital expenditure.

Measures implemented helped to reduce operating expenses (excluding application processing % support
service expenses) significantly by 35% to CHF 235.5 million (2019 CHF 360.1 million).

To further assure the liquidity of the Group, the existing owners have provided additional facitites of THF
143.1 million and third-party ienders {including the revalving credit facility available at Kiwi VFS Sub 11 S.a.r )
have provided additional facility of CHF 46.3 million.

In addition, the Group has raised funds of CHF 8.9 million from local banks. The Group has received govern-
ment backed loans of CHF 1.4 million in source countries. As at December 31, 2020, there is ar undrawn
facility of CHF 33.4 millien (including revolving credit facilities of CHF 18.3 miilion) which will be available with
the Group for its operations, bringing the total Group year-end available liquidity at CHF 168.7 million.

The Board of Directors of VFS Global AG (indirect subsidiary of the Company) and the management n-onitor
liguidity and operating performance of the Group on a frequent and regular basis by means of daily trackirg
of applicant counts, ongoing cast menitoring and rolling liquidity projecticns and scenario planning. The rman-
agement uses various internal and external reference points for its projections inciuding: 1) market estimates
from reputed strategy consulting firm, i) market estimate from airlines and travel associations such as Inter-
national Air Transport Association (IATA) and iii} the expected timing of a successful Covid-19 vaccine -ollout
during the course of financial year 2021 and 2022. On this basis, the management expects extant Q4 o” 2020
volumes to carry into Q1 of 2021 before a modest recovery takes place during Q2 of 2021 thatl increases
gradually during the second half of 2021. This assumption is in line with the early roll out of the vaccines in
financial year 2021.

VFS Global believes that the fundamental value drivers for the business remain intact and are supportes by
secular growth trends. A significant proportion of the cost savings and other initiatives planned and undertaken
in response tc Covid-19 are expected to have sustainable effect to strengthen the business also post the
recovery and have a lasting positive effect on the Group’s profitability. Based on the current knowledge of tre
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Group performance as of March 11, 2021 and the expected pattern of business recovery, the Company's
Board of Managers and the management are of the opinion that the measures taken and financing received
will assure the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Swiss francs (CHF) and all the amounts disclosed in
the consolidated financial statements and notes have been rounded to the nearest hundred thousand and are
shown in CHF million unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements are authorised for issue on March 11, 2021 by the Company's Board
of Managers and will be submitted tor the approval of sharehclders befuie Apil 11, 2021,

Adoption of new and amended accounting standards
(i) New standards issued

(a) The following new standards and amendments to standards have been issued and are applicable for
the financial year beginning January 1, 2020. These changes to IFRS have been applied in these
cansclidated financial statements:

New Standards or amendment to stand- Effective date Application from
ards and interpretations

IFRS 16 — Covid-19 related Rent Conces- June 1, 2020 Reporting year 2020
sions ‘

Amendments to References to the Concep-  January 1, 2020 Reporting year 2020
tual Framework in IFRS Standards

Definition of a Business (Amendments to January 1, 2020  Reporting year 2020
IFRS 3)

Definition of Material (Amendments to IAS 1 January 1, 2020  Reporting year 2020
and |AS 8)

Interest rate benchmark reform (Amend- January 1, 2020 Reporting year 2020

ments to IFRS 8 JAS 39 and IFRS 7)

None of these changes had any significant impact on these conscligated financial statements in their
application except for rent concessions practical expedients issued as per IFRS 16. The Group has
approached landlords for rental waivers and payment deferments for a certain period of time during
the Covid-19 crisis. The majority of the landiords agreed with VFS proposals and accordingly the
Group has accounted for all qualifying rent concessians satisfying the conditions provided in the prac-
tical expedient of IFRS 186 as variable lease payment in the consolidated income statement {refer note
9).

{b)} The following new and revised standards and interpretations have been issued but are not yet effec-
tive, They have not been applied early in these consolidated financial statements. A preliminary as-
sessment has been conducted by VFS Global management and the Group does not expect significant
impact from new proncuncements issued but not yet effective.

Revisions and amendments of stand- Effective date Planned application
ards and interpretations

Interest rate benchmark reform (Amend- January 1, 2021 Reporting year 2021
ments to IFRS 9. IAS 3% and IFRS 7) -

Phase 2
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Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds January 1, 2022 Reporting year 2022
before intended use — Amendments to IAS

16

Reference to the Conceptual Framework — January 1, 2022 Reporting year 2022
Amendments to IFRS 3

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a January 1. 2022 Reperting year 2022
Contract Amendments tc 1AS 37

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards January 1, 2022 Reporting year 2022
2018-2020 '

Classification of Liabilities as Current or January 1, 2023 Reporting year 2025

Nen-current — Amendments to 1AS 1

In the previous financial year 2019, the Group has applied the following International Financial Reporing
Standards {IFRS), interpretations or requirements with effect from January 1, 2019:

e |FRS 16 — Lease accounting
s |FRIC 23 — Uncertainties over Income tax treatments
o Annual Improvements to IFRS standards 2015-2017 Cycle

Apart from IFRS 16 (refer note 9), none of these changes had any significant impact on these consol asted
financial statements in their application.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies

The following is the summary of significant acccunting policies applied by the Group in preparing its consoli-
dated f:nancial statements:

(i) Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
Supsidiaries

Subsidiaries included in these consolidated tinancial statements are ail entilies uver which the Cunpeany has
direct or indirect control. The Group controls such an entity when it is exposed to, or has substantive rights to
var able returns from its involvement with the Group and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power to direct the activities of the entities. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Company until the date on which control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business combinations by the Group which is
explained in note 1.

Intercompany transactions, outstanding balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group com-
panias are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the poiicies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the net result/{loss) and equity of the subsidiaries are shown separately in the
corsolidated statement of financial position, censclidated income statement, consolidated statement of com-
prehensive income and consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Joint arrangements

Under IFRS 11 - Joint Arrangements, investments in the joint arrangements are classified as either joint op-
eraticns or joint ventures. The classification depends on the contractual rights and obligations of each investar,
rather than the legal structure of the joint arrangement. The Group has interests in joint ventures that are
acceunted for using the equity method as per IAS 28 — Investments in associates and joint ventures, after
intt:ally being recognised at cost in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Equity methed

Joint ventures are entities which VFS Global jeintly controls with a joint venture partner, and whereby VFS
Clcbal is invelved in the management. Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially
recognsed at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the post-acquisition profit or
lcsses of the investee in the consolidated income statement, and the Group’s share of movements in the
corsolidated statement of comprehensive income of the investee in the consolidated statement of compre-
hersive ncome. Dividends received or receivable from joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in the
carying amount of the investment,

Un-ealised gains on transactions between the Group and the joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s Interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides ev-
dence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity accounted investees have been
charged where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adepted by the Group. The financial state-
mets of the joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as of the Group.
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The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is tested for impairment in accordance with the palicy
described in note (xviii) below.

Change in ownership interests

Non-controlling interests are measured initially at their fair value or propertionate share of the acquirer's 1den-
tifiable net assets at the date of acquisition. The measurement selection can be different for each acauisition.
Changes in the Group's interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted as saulty
transactions.

When the Group ceases to have control over a subsidiary previously included in these consclidated financial
statements. it derecognises the assets and iabilities of the subsidiary and any related non-controlling intares!s
and other components of eguity. Any resulting gain orloss is recognised in the consolidated income staterert,
Amounts previously recegnised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income that may be reclas-
sified to the consolidated income statement are reclassified to the consolidated income statemert. Any re-
tained interest in the former subsidiary is remeasured to its fair value at the date when control is lost.

When the Group's share of losses in the equity accounted investment equals or exceeds the carrying amount
of invesiment in joint venture, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred cbligations
in respect of the joint venture.

When the Group acquires an additional stake in the joint ventures and the Group acquires control as per IFRS
10. the Group fair values the existing share In joint venture as per IFRS 3 and any fair value gamnfioss is
accounted for in the consolidated income statement,

The list of individual entities included within these consolidated financial statements which together form VES
Globa! is provided in note 28.

{ii) Current vs non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the consoiidated statement of financial position based on current/
non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:
+ Expected to be realised or intended to be scld or censumed in normal operating cycle,
= Held primarily for the purpose of trading
- Expected to be realised within twelve menths after the reporting pericd, or
+ Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged ¢r used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as nen-current.
A liability is current when:
s It is expected tc be settled in normal cperating cycle
s It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
+ It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
+ There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period,

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
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The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash
and cash equivaients. The Group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

(iii) Foreign currency translation
{a) Functional and presentation currency

items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates ("the functional currency”). The consol-
dated financial statements are presented in Swiss francs (CHF) which is the Company’s functional and
oresentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions on transaction date are translated inte the functional currency using the
exchange rates at the date of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settiement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreigh currencies at year end exchange rates are generaily recognised in the consolidated income state-
ment.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and loans advanced to related parties and
others are presented in the consolidated income statement separately as non-operational foreign ex-
change gain/loss as part of financial result. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in
the consolidated income statement on net basis above earnings/(loss) before financial result and taxes
(EBITY in other operating income.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in the foreign currency are translated using the ex-
cnange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabil-
‘ties carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair vaiue gain or [oss. For example, translation differ-
ances on non-monetary assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or {oss
{FVTPL} are recognised in consclidated income statement as part of the fair value gain or loss and trans-
lation differences on non-monetary assets such as equities measured at fair value through other compre-
nensive income (FVOCI) are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

{c} Group companies

The result and financiat position of foreign cperations that have a functional currency different from the
gresentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as fallows:
e assels and liabilities for each financial position presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that financial position,
¢ income and expenses for income statement and statement of comprehensive income are trans-
lated at average exchange rates {unless this is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions), and
« All resulting exchange differences are recognised in consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Wnen a foreign operation is sold, the associated exchange differences are reciassified to consclidated income
statement, as part of financial result.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and
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liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate of that financial position.

{iv) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts d:sclesed as
revenue are neat of returns, discount, value adoed taxes and amounts collected on behalf of third pates.
Taxes and amounts received on behalf of governments are excluded from revenue.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probabie that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the Grcup s
activities as described below. The Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration
the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(a)

(b}

{c)

(d)

Visa processing and other services

Revenue is recognised at the time of comoletion of services to the visa applicants. The performarce
obligation is satisfied once the completeness check is done and the documents are submitied ¢ the
gevernment missions/embassies. The Group has an enforceable right to the payment on completion of
services. The revenue is not recognised and is considered as contract liabilities until the services are
provided to the visa applicants.

Value added services (VAS)

Value added services include courier services, premium founge, short messaging services (SMS) etc.
Revenue is recognised upon the utilization of services by the visa applicants. As the performance obii-
gation is satisfied at a peint in time, revenue is recognised at the time of completion of these servces.
VAS are an integral part of visa processing services and revenue is measured in aggregate.

Revenue from facility management company (FMC}

The primary responsibility of provicing the visa processing services to the government missions/embas-
sies lies with the Group. The Group remains the principal obligor for visa application centers cperated
urnder FMC arrangements. Therefore, the FMC is considered as the agent and the Group has recogrised
gross revenue in its consolidated income statement and the share of revenue due to FMC is presented
as application processing and support service expenses. There are two exceptions to the above princi-
ples which are as follows:

1) where the applicants have the ability to appreach directly the government missions/embassies
for the visa processing services, or

{ii) geographies where the Group cannot directly operate due to tegal and regulatory constra nts.

In the above exceptions, the Group recognises revenue on net basis in its consclidated income slate-
ment.

Period of revenue contracts
The Group generally does not have any material contracts where the period between the provision of the

services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds twelve months, As a conseguence the
Group does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money.
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{v) Application processing and support service expenses
Application processing and support service expenses include all facility management company service
cnargesfrevenue share, courier fees, biometric expenses, cash collection agency charges, call centre, com-
munication and other charges relating to applicaticn processing and support service.

{vi) Employee benefits

{a} Short-term obligations

Lianllities for wages, salaries including social security contributions, paid vacation and sickness-related ab-
sences, bonuses and non-monetary benefits that are expected to settle wholly within twelve months afier the
end of the reporting period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of
employee’s service up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be
paid when the liabilities will be settled.
The liabilities are presented as other liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position.

(b} Post-employment obligations

The Group operates various post-employment schemes. including both defined benefit and defined contribu-
tior pensicn plans.

Defined contribution plans

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately administered provident fund scheme, pension insurance
plaxs on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further payment obligations once the
conrtributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised as personnel expenses when they are due.

Defined benefit plans

Tne main defined benefit plan relevant for the Group relates to the Swiss pension plan. The plan is funded by
VFE S Global Investment AG (VFSGI) {(employer) and the employees. A smaller funded plan exists in India and
un-funded plans exist in United Arab Emirates {UAE), Kingdom of Saudi Arabia (KSA) and other countries.
Tre Group's net asset/obligation in respect of defined benefit pension plans is calculated separately for each
plan by estimating the amount of future bhenefits employees have earned in the current and prior periods.
d scounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets and is presented as net liabilities or
net assets in the consolidated financial statements.

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected
unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Group, the recognised asset 1s
limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of reductions in future contributions to
the benefit pian or coverage of potential higher future liabilities. To calculate the present value of economic
berefits. consideration is given to any applicable minimum funding requirements.
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Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and lcsses on a defned
benefit liability, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of an asset ceiling (exciucing
interest), are recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. The Group
determines the net interest expense/ {income) on the net defined benefit liability/ (asset) for the perod by
applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obiigation at the beginning of the annual neriod
to the net defined benefit liability/ (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit iiabilty/
(assel) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. The net interest expense anc cther
expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in the consclidated income statement.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefils that
relates to past services or the gain or [0ss on curtailment is recognised in the consolidated income staterment
or consolidated statement of comprehensive income based on change in plan benefits. The Group ‘ecognise
gains and losses an the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

(c} Restructuring cost

Restructuring cost as defined by !aw or agreed with the employee, are payable when employmert i1s termi-
nated by the group before the normal retirement date, or when an employee accepts voluntary redundansy n
exchange for these benefits. The Group recognise restructuring costs at the earlier of the following dates (a)
when the group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b) when the entity recognise costs
for a restructuring that is within the scope of IAS 37 and involves the payment of termination benefits. Benefits
falling due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period are discounted to present value,

(d} Deferred bonus incentive

The Group has created a deferred bonus incentive scheme to retain high performing employees who ar2 righ
on crifical and scarcity scale. The scheme Is part of other tong-term employee benefits and the proport.o-ate
cost has been recognised as personnel expenses in the consclidated income statement. Benefits fallirg due
more than 12 months after the end of reporting period are discounted to present vaiue,

(vii) Government grants

Grants from government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance tha! the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all the attached conditions. Government graats shail be
recognised in consolidated income statement on a systematic basis ¢ver the periods in which the Group
recognise as expenses, the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. Government grants
received in the form of locans at below-market rate of interest are recognized and measured in accordance
with IFRS @. These gavernment grants are received due to Covid-19 impact on the people and business

(viii) Leases
The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is. if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for conside ation.
Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis.
Lease liabilities include the net present value of the fcllowing lease payments:

« fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments). less any lease incentives recewvat'e.

« variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate,

e amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees,

¢ lease payments to be made under reasonakly certain extension options are alsc included ir: the
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measurement of the liability,

« the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee Is reasonably certain to exercise that option
and,

» payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that
option.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be deter-
mined from the lease contract, otherwise using the individual entity’s incremental borrowing rate.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

« the amount of the initial measurement of lease liabilities,

« any lease accruals/prepayments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incen-
tives received,

« any initial direct costs, and

¢ restoration cost.

Tne lease liabilities are subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on
the lease liabilities, reducing the carrying amount to refiect the lease payments made and remeasuring the
zarrying amount to reflect any reassessment or ease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed
lease payments. Any amount on account of re-measurement of lease liabilities is agjusted to the right-of-
Jse assets. Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use assets is reduced tc zero and there 1s a further
ceduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Group recognises any remaining amaunt of the re-
measurement in the consolidated income statement.

Right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost less any accumulated depreciation,
accumulated impairment losses. if any, and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liabilities. The
right-of-use assets are depreciated using the straight-line method from the transition/commencement date
over the shorter of lease terms or useful lives of right-of-use assets and the depreciation is recognised in
the consolidated income statement. Any change in the lease liabilities due to variable lease payments that
are based on index or rate are adjusted in the nght-of-use assets.

The right-of-use asseis are also subject to impairment following the accounting policies described in sec-
tion (xviii) impairment of non-financial assets,

Payments associated with short-term leases (shorter than twelve months, provided there is no purchase
aptions) of premises and others and all leases of low-value assets such as equipment on lease are recog-
n.sed on a straight-line basis as an expense in the consolidated income statement.

Lease payments including interest are shown as cash outflows from financing activities in the Consolidated
statement of cash flows.

{ix) Financia!l result

Financial result includes profit/loss on sale of subsidiaries, financial income, financial expenses, fair value
ganfloss on acquisition of investments accounted for using equity method, gain/loss due to change in
control and change in contingent consideration for acguistions.
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(x) Income taxes

Inceme taxes are comprised of current and deferred tax. They are recognised in the consolidated ircare
statement, except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in cther comprehensive ncome .n
which case they are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current perfed's taxable ircome
based on the applicable income tax rates of each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax asse's
and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax taws enacted or substantively eracted
at the end of the reporting period in the countries where the Company's subsidiaries operate ard gencrate
taxable income. The management periodically evaluates positicns taken in tax returns with respect to sit-
uations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where ap-
propriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method. on temporary differences ansing bevieen
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statemoents,
Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or tiabilly .n a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accourting
nor taxable profit nor loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) of respestve
countries that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and a-e ex-
pected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax haoilily
is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that fuiure taxable amounts wiil be availab'e to
utilise those temporary differences and losses. Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recogrise { for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax base of investments in foreign operatons
where the Company is able to controf the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences ard it 1s
probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax liabilities on undistributed profits of subsidiaries are recognised, uniess dividend paymen:s to
the owner are not planned for the fareseeable future. The amount of deferred tax recognised is based on
the expected mannrer of realisation or settiement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities. using tax
rates enacted or substantially enacted at the financial position date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceabie right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Currert tax
assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset ard itends
either to settie on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

{xi) Property, plant and equipment {PPE)

Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attrioutable to the acquisition of the items.

Where an item of property, plant and equipment comprises major components having different useful hves
they are accounted for as separate property, plant and equipment item.

Kiw VFS Sub | 8.4 rl. - Cansolidated financal statements 2020 Paje 31 0




UVfS. ) VFS.GLOBAL

EST. 2001

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as ap-
propriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably, The carrying amount of any camponent ac-
counted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the consolidated income statement during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

The depreciation methods and periods used by the Group are disclosed in note 8,

The asset's residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period. An asset's carrying value is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. Gains and Iosses on disposals
are determined by comparing sale proceeds with carrying amount. These amounts are included in the
consolidated income statement.

(xii} Intangible assets
(a) Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in note {xii} business combination. In respect of joint ventures, the
carrying amount of goodwilt is included in the carrying amount of the invesiment in the joint venture. Good-
will is not amortised, but it is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to
the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating unit (CGU} for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation
i€ made to those cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the business combination in which
the goodwill arose. The unit is identified at the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes (refer note 11},

(b) Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets comprise acquired and self-developed software, licences and similar rights such
as brand, customer relationship. etc. acquired in a business combination. Intangible assets acquired :n a
bus:ness cambination are recognised separately from goodwilt if they are subject ta contractual or fegal
rights or are separately transferable and their fair value can be reliably estimated at acquisition date. Sep-
arately acquired intangible assets are shown at historical cost and amortised based on estimated useful
lives. Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

The amortisation method and periods used by the Group are disclosed in note 10.

Tne asset's carrying value is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

(xiii) Business combination

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all business combinations. The consideration
fransferred for the acquisition of a business includes the.
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o fair values of the assets transferred,

» liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired business,

* equity interests issued by the Group,

» fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, and
« fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
with limited exceptions, measured inhally at their fair values at the acquisition date. The Group recogrises
any non-controlling interests in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or
at the non-controiling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired entity’'s net identifiable assets. The Goup
recognises pre-existing equity interest fair value gain/loss on acquisition of business in the conscinaied in-
come statement.

Acquisition-related costs are recognised in the consolidated income statement as incurred.

The excess of the

+ consideration transferred,

+ amount of any nen-controlling interest in the acquired entity, and

» acquisition-date fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the acquired entity
over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acguired is recorded as goodwill, If those amounts arz2 less
than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the difference is recognised diractly
in the consolidated income statement as a bargain purchase.

{xiv) Financial assets
Classification:
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

a) Those to be measured subsequently at farr value (either through the consolidated statement of conpre-
hensive income, or through the consclidated income statement), and

by These measured at amortised cost.
Initial recognition and measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset
not at fair value through profit or loss, transacticn costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of tre
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are recogrised
in the consolidated income statement.

Subsequent measurements

Subsequent measurement af debt instruments depends on the Group’s business model for managing the
asset and tha cash flow characteristics of the asset. The Group classifies its debt instruments into the following
categories:

« Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest incomre
from these financial assets is included in financial result using the effective interest rate method.

» Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI}: Assets that are held for callection of
contractuai cash flows and for selling the financial assets where cash flow represents solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at fair value through cther comprehensive income (FVQCI),
Movements in the carrying amount are taken through other comprehensive income (OCl). except for
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the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses
which are recognised in the consolidated income statement. When the financiat asset is derecog-
nised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from equity to the con-
sclidated income statement. Interest income from these financial assets is included in financial result
using the effective interest rate method.

+ Fair value through profit and loss {FVTPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost
or FVOC! are measured at fair value through profit and loss. interest income frem these financial
assets is included in financial result.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value through profit and loss account
(FVTPL). Where the Group’s management has eiected the irrevocable eption to present fair value gains and
losses on equity investments in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income instead of the consali-
dat=d income statement, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses from OCl to
consolidated income statement. Upen sale of equity instruments measured as FVOCI, the cumulative gains
and losses previously recagnised in OCI are transferred to retained earnings.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents include cash on hand. deposits held at call with finarcial institulions as well as
othar short-term, highly liguid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
Deposits with maturity above three months are shown in other financial assets.

Trade receivables

Trade receivabies are recognised intially at their transaction price and subsequently measured at amontised
cost using the effective interest methad, which includes the deduction of expected credit losses. Refer note
below on impairment of financial assets for description of the Group’s impairment policies.

Loans

Lcans are initially recorded at fair value and subseguently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate method.

De-recognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognised only when:

» the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,

« the Group has transferred a financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the
financial asset, and

« the group retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset but assumes a
centractual obligation to pay the cash flows to cne or more recipients.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises toss allowances for expected credit losses (ECLs) on financial assets measured at
amortised cost and fair value through other comprehensive income. The Groug measures loss allowances at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs except for financial assets for which credit risk has not increased
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significantly since initial recegniticn: these are measured at 12-month ECLs.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach permitted by IFRS 9. which requires lifet ire
ECLs to be recognised from initial recognition of the trade receivables.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial resogri-
ticn and when estimating ECLs, the Group considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant
and available without undue cost or effert. This includes both quantitative and qualitative informaticn and
analysis, based on the Group's historical experience and informed credit assessment and inctuding fovard-
locking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivanies.
The Group formulates a 'base-case' view of the future direction of relevant economic variables as wel 25 a
representative range of other possible forecast scenarios. This process involves developing additionzl cca-
nemic scenarios and considering the relative probabilities of the cutcome.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than €0
days past due. The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when:
+ the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by ‘he Group
to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or
e the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a fina ol
instrument. 12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the
12 months after the reperting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12
months). The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period cver
which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value
of all cash shertfalls {i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Group in accordance weih the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive}. ECLs are discounted at the effective irterest
rate of the financial asset.

Credit-impaired financial assets
At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit-
impaired. A financial assetf is ‘credit-impaired’ when cne or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

« significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

» g breach of contract such as a default; or

s itis probable that the borrower will enter bankruplcy or other financial reorganisation.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount
of the financial assets.
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Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off on a case-by-case basis when the Group has no
reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a porticn thereof.

(xv) Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at tair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and paya-
b.es. ne: of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification. as described below

« Financia! liabilties at amortised cost
« Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for tracing and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Borrowings

Boirowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction cost incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amertised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemp-
tior: amount is recognised in consolidated income statement over the period of the borrowings using the ef-
fective interest method.

De-recognition

A fimancial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modifie¢, such an exchange or maodification is treated as
the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying ameounts is recognised in the consolidatea income statement.

{xvi) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated statement
of f rancial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there Is
an rtention to settle on a net basis to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simuitaneously.

{xvii} Derivative and hedging activities

The Group enters into derivative contracts to manage its exposure to interest rate through interest rate swaps
Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting pericd. The accounting for subse-

g.ent changes in fair value depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if
sc the nature of the item being hedged and the type of hedge relationship designated.
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The Group designates their interest rate swaps as cash flow hedges of interest rate risk associated with the
variahle interest rate borrowings.

At the inception of hedging transaction, the Group documents the economic relationship between hedgirg
instruments and hedged items including whether the hedging instrument is expected to offset changes in cash
flows of hedged items. At the inception, the Group documents its risk management objective and strategy for
undertaking various hedge transactions of each hedge relationship.

The fair values of varicus derivative financial instruments used for hedging purposes are disclosed i1 ncte 24
Mowvements in the hedging reserve in shareholders' equity are shown in the consolidated statement of com-
prehensive income. The full fair value of a hedging derivative is classified as a non-current asset or lan ity
when the remaining maturity of the hedged item 1s more than twelve manths; it is ciassified as a current asset
or liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is less than twelve months.

Cash flow hedges that qualify for hedge accounting

The Group only designates the intrinsic value of the derivative instrument for hedging. The effective portion
of changes in the fair vatue of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is racourised
in the cash flow hedge reserve within equity, limited to the cumulative change in fair value of the hedged tem
on a present value basis from the inception of the hedge. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective poitin- 18
recognised immediately in the consolidated inceme statement, within other operating expenses. Time valee
component of the hedging instrument is recognised in the cost of hedging reserve within equity and amcriised
over the period of the contract in the consolidated income statement.

Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified in the periods when the hedged item affects the consol.dated
income statement, is recognised as financial result in the consolidated income statement.

When a hedging instrument expires, or is $old or terminated, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for
hedge accounting, any cumulative deferred gair or loss and deferred costs of hedging in equity at that ime
remains in equity until the forecast transaction occurs. When the forecast transaction is no longer expected
to occur, the cumulative gain or loss and costs of hedging that were reported in equity are immediately reclas-
sified to the consolidated income statement.

Hedge ineffectiveness is recognised in the consolidated income statement within other operating expenses.
{xviii) Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill is not subject to amortisation and is tested annually for impairment or more frequently if even:s or
changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairmant when-
ever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may net be recoverable,

An impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated income statement for the amount by which the assets
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, The recoverable amount is the higher of an asse:'s fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped
at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independe-t of
the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other tnan
goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

The annual impairment test is based on the VFS Global cash generating units (CGL). The CGU 1s defired as
the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the: cash

inflows from other assets or groups of assets. The Group is considered as a single cash generating urt as
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this 1s the lowest level at which monitoring is performed by the Group.
{xix) Fair value measurement

Tre Group measures financial instruments such as derivatives and certain investments at fair value at each
finarcial position date. Fair value is the price that would be received to seil an asset or paid to transfer a
liacility in an crderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value meas-
urement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
aither

+ In the principal market for the asset or liability or

= In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability s measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate
ecoromic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use
of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are catego-
nsec within the fair value hierarchy. described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significart to
the far value measurement as a whole:

+ lLeveld- Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

e lLevel2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the farr
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

o level3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the farr

value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recogrised in the consolidated statement of financial position on & recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between jevels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
catagorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at
the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group nas determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above.

(xx) Borrowing costs
General and specific borrowing cests that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qual-
ifying asset are capitalised as a part of the cost of that asset until such time the assets are substantially ready

for their intended use as intended by the management. Interest income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on quatifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
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eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the consolidated income statement in the period in whic thav are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

(xxi) Provisions, contingent liabilities and capital commitment
Provisions

Provisions for legal claims and make good obligations are recognised when the Group has a present legzl or
constructive ohligation as a result of past events, 't is probable that an outflow of resources will be reau rod o
settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future cper-
ating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement Is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even If the Likelihood
of an ogutflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be smalt.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the management s best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present abligation at the end of the reparting neriod. The discount rate used to determine the
present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of morey ana tre
risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest
expense as part of financial result.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence w il be con-
firmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly witkin the
control of the Group; or a present cbligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because t s
not proebable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obliga'ion
or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. Contingent liabilities are not
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position but are disclosed separately,

Capital commitment

A capital commitment is a possible obligation that arises from the contracts or purchase orders issued to
parties for acquiring non-current assets i.e. capital expenditure or purchase of equity shares; but it is not
recognised as the event is not triggered as at date of consolidated statement of financial position and nence
are disclosed separately.

{xxii} Dividends

Financial liability is recognised for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authcrised ard
no longer at the discretion of the Group, on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed al the
end of the reporting pericd.

{xxiii} Non GAAP financial measures

The following alternative financial perfermance measures (non-IFRS) have been used as the manag:zrment
believes that they are useful supplemental measures of performance and liquidity for investors, securiies
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analysts and cther interested parties. The alternative performance measures may not be comparable to sim-
ilary titled measures of other companies, have limitations as analytical tools and should not be considered in
isclation or as a substitute for analysis of operating result, performance or liquidity under IFRS. The manage-
men monitors these non GAAP financial measures on a consolidated level.

(a) Earnings/(loss) before financial result, taxes, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA}

The Group has elected to present EBITDA which represents net result/(loss) before financial result, income
tax expenses. depreciation, amortisation and impairment.

(b)Y Earnings/(loss) before financial result and taxes (EBIT)

The Group has elected to present EBIT which represents net result/(loss) before financial result and income
tax expenses.

{c) Operating earnings/(loss) before financial result, taxes, depreciation and amortisation {Operating
EBITDA)

Tre Group has elected to present Operating EBITDA which represents EBITDA (as defined in (a) above)
adding back or deducting non-operational expenses and income. During the financial year 2020, Covid-18
has impacted the business of the Group and some additional cost has been incurred to restart the cperations.
The Group has also taken certain additional measures which were considered as non-operating costs. Ac-
cordingly, these costs were adjusted during the year to see the real operating performance of the Group. Non-
operational expenses and income (ltems) can be categorised as below:

« Consulting and advisory expenses related to acquisitions and disinvestments,

+» Consulting and advisory expenses related to projects and activities that are rare in occurrence,

+ Start-up losses for new ventures / business initiatives (for a period of not more than two years},

« Consulling and adviscory costs or other expenses related to restructuring,

» Non-operating costs or income for non-recurring items {e.g. legacy and former holding costs),

« Costincurred due to impact of Covid-19 on business (restart of operations of VACs including saniti-
sation costs, surrender of premises, employee restructuring, impairment of assets etc.}.

{d} Operating earnings/(loss) before financial result, taxes and amortisation (Operating EBITA)

The Group has elected to present Operating EBITA which represents EBITDA (as defined in {a} above) less
depreciation, amortisation of other intangibie assets (other than intangible assets acquired through business
combination) and impairment of other intangible assets adding back or deducting non-cperational expenses
and nenme.

(e) Operating Cash Flow and Cash Conversion ratio

The Group has elected to present Operating Cash Flow which represents Operating EBITDA (as defined in
(c) above) deducting additions in purchase of property. plant and equipment and other intangible assets de-
ductng lease payments (including interest) adding back or deducting change in Net Working Capital as per
the consolidated statement of financial position. Cash Conversion ratio further presents Operating Cash Flow
as a percentage of Operating EBITDA less lease payments (including interest).

{fy Net Debt
The Group has elected 1o present Net Debt which represents non-current and current borrowings including
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lease liabilities and deducting cash and cash equivalents.

{g) Change in Net Working Capital as per consolidated statement of financial position

The Group has elected to present change in Net Working Capital as per the consolidated statement ¢f linaicial
position. The current assets include trade receivables, other current financial assets and other current assets.
add/less amount payable/receivable from holding companies. The current liabilities include trade and cther
payables and other current liabilities. The Net Working Capital is the difference between current assets ard
current liabilities. The change in Net Working Cagital is calculated by comparing Net Working Capital of cu rent
year with Net Working Capital of previous year.

4, Key judgements, management estimates and assumptions

When preparing the consclidated financial statements, the management must make decisions, estimates and
assumptions that have an impact an income, expenses, assets and liabilities. The actual result may differ ‘rom
these management estimates, Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going bas s ard
are based on past findings and various other factors. Changes in accounting estimates may be recessary if
there are changes in the circumstances on which the estimate was based, ¢or as a result of new irformation
or additional experience. Such changes are recognised in the consalidated income statement in the pe-iod in
which the estimate is revised.

The key assumptions about the future and key sources of estimation uncertainty that have a significan® sk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying values of assets and liabilities within the next twelve moths
are described below. On the basis of the infarmation currently available, they are considered to be appronnate.

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, the management has made the follow'ng judge-
ments, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recegrised in the consolidated financial s'ate-
ments,

(i) Key Judgements
{a) Revenue recognition

The performance obligation is satisfied once the completeness check is done and the documents are sub-
mitted to the government missions/embassies and thus having an enforceable right to the payment on
completion of services (refer note 2 for more details).

Under cperation model involving FMC, the service fee is shared between the Group and the FMC through
back-to-back contractual arrangements. Under these arrangements, the primary responsibility of prov'2ting
the visa processing services to the government missions/embassies lies with the Group and revenue has
been recognised on gross basis.

However, there are two exceptions where the principal obligations shift to FMC and revenue has been
recognised on net basis by the Group.

(i) where the applicants have the ability to approach directly the government missions/embassies fo- the
visa processing services, or
(i) gecgraphies where the Group cannat directly operate due to legal and regulatory constraints,

(b} Property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, goodwill and intangible assets

The impairment review is performed for property plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intang ble

¥ VFS Sub | 5.4 ¢ ~ Consolidated financial statements 2020 Page 2110



VFS.GLOBAL

EST. 2001

assets which include goodwill, brands. customer relationships etc. Goodwill is reviewed at least annually
for impairment. Impairment testing for propenty, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets is reviewed if there is an indicaticn of impairment. To assess if any impairment exists, estimates
are made of the future cash flows expected to resuit from the use of the asset and its eventual disposal.
Actual cutcomes could vary significantly from such estimates of discounted future cash flows.

The uncertainty about the future cash flows is reflected by different probability-weighted cash flow projec-
tions that represent the maragement’s best estimate of the range of ecenomic conditions that will exist
over the remaining useful life of the asset or CGU.

Weighted cash flow projections

The Group has assessed the internal and external reports for the preparation of future cash flows and
developed a range of best estimates of when business returns to pre-Covid levels. In the maost probzble
scenario this is in Q1 of 2023 and in the second most probable in Q1 of 2024 and the least probabie in Q4
of 2022. The applied weighting is 60 %. 30 % and 10 %, respectively.

The Group has initiated certain cost savings activities which wili be continued in the coming years and will
provide better EBITDA margins in the future years.

Facters such as changes in the presence or absence of competition, slower recovery from Covid-19 tech-
nical chsolescence or lower than anticipated revenue from cash-generating unit with capitalised goodwll
could resuit in shortened useful lives or impairment (refer note 8, 9,10 and 11 for more details).

(ii) Other management estimates and assumptions

{a) Assessment of control

Due to legal and regulatory constraints, the Group holds less than 50% stake in a few of the subsidiaries.
Even though the Group owns less than 50% of the voting rights in these subsidiaries, the Group 15 ex-
posed to, or has right to; variable returns from its involvement with these entities and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power to direct the activities of these entities. (refer note 29 for more
details).

{b) Income and deferred taxes

Significant estimates are required in determining the current and deferred tax assets and liabilities. Some
of these estimates are based on interpretations of existing tax laws and regulations of a wide range of tax
jurisdictions. The management believes that these estimates are reasonable and that the recognised lia-
bilities for income-tax-related uncertainties are adequate. Various internal and external tactors may have
favourable or unfavourable effects on income tax assets and liabilities. These factors include, but are not
imited to, changes in tax laws and regulations or their interpretation, and changes in tax rates. Any such
changes that arise colld impact the current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities recognised in
the conselidated statement cof financial position in future periods. Furthermore. in order to determing
wnether lax loss carry forwards may be carried as assets, it is first necessary to critically assess the
prchability of future taxabte profits to offset them. Such profits depend themselves on a variety of influ-
encirg factors and developments (refer note 7 for more details).

{c} Useful lives of intangible assets

The Group reviews the useful life of intangible assets at the end of each reporting period. This reassess-
ment may result in a change in amortisation pattern in future periods (refer note 10 for more details).
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{d} Employee benefits

For the purpose of inclusion of the Swiss pension plan, significant estimates are required in determiring
the relevant service costs. {refer note 3 for more details).

(e) Lease liabilities (refer note 9 for more details)

(i} Lease term

The Group has its majority of lease contracts for visa application centres (VACs) and offices across
the globe apart from a few lease contracts for equipment and vehicles. In determining the lzase -erm
for the lease contracts. the management considers all facts and circumstances that create an ece-
nomic incentive to exercise an extension option,

For lease contracts of visa application centres, the most relevant factors impacting the individual l«:ase
extension opticn are:

+ |fthe visa application centre is used for multiple client governments operations, then the Grouc s
reasonably certain to extend (or not terminate)

+ |f the visa application centre is used for single client government operations. then the Grouip is
reasonably certain to not extend (terminate)

o Otherwise, the Group considers other factors including contract with the client governments {open
ended), auto renewal term of lease contracts, significant leasehold improvements anc costs re-
lating tc the termination of the lease etc,

Extension options in office lease contracts have been included in the lease liabilities, as he G-oup

has incurred the significant cost for leasehoid improvements.

Most extension options in equipment and vehicles lease contracts have not been included n the Iease
liabitities, as the Group could replace the assets without incurring significant cost or business aisrip-
tion.

The lease term is reassessed if an option 1s actually exercised {or not exercised) or the Group be-
comes obliged to exercise {or not exercise). The assessment is only revised if a significant event or a
significant change in circumstances occurs, which affects the initial assessment, and the same 15
within the control of the Group.

{ii) Discount rate for lease payments

Lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease contracts if that rate can
be determined from the lease contracts. If the discount rate cannot be readily determinec, which is
generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee's incremental borrowing rate is used, being the
rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms. security
and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate for the entities in the Group, the management censiders

the following computation methodology:

+ Interest rates for European corporate bonds of similar rated companies. since the tenure ¢ the
third-party financing of the Group is not similar to leasing arrangements across the Group,

s Adjusted the above to reflect the similar term, payment structure, credit risk and the cross-curriargy

swaps to equate the same to currency in which iease contracts are entered into, and
¢ Applied interest rate parity 1o determine the discount rate for respective currency.
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1. Business combination

(i) Summary of acquisition in financial year 2020

The Group has not acguired any new business during financial year 2020,

{ii) Summary of acquisitions in financial year 2019

The Group has entered into share purchase agreements with majority of the shareholders of Tharakan Web
Innavation Private Ltd {"Docswallet”) in 2019 and consequently has acquired 90.6% of the issued share capital
of Docswallet. The date of control has been determined as August 23, 2019,

Docswallet, incorporated in India, is a provider of digital wallet solution which meets emerging trends in doc-
umant verification. Docswallet provides a secure ecesystem designed for governments, corporations and
othar institutions to directly connect, distribpute and snare sensitive (and verified) documents belonging to in-
div duals.

Tris acquisition strengthens the VFS Group product portfolio and provided a best in class and scalable soiu-
ticn which can be deployed in sectors like education. financial services, healthcare and travel. This will also
accelerate the development and growth of visa services including attestation and verification services which
is 1n line with the Group's strategy.

Detalls of the purchase consideration, the net assets acquired and goodwill arising on acguisition are as fol-
lows.

Purchase consideration (refer to (a) below}:

n CHF million Total
Sereentage acquired 90.6%
Censideration paid 3.3
Tctal purchase consideration 3.3

The assets and liabilities recognised at fair value as a result of the acquisition are as follows:

i Sk million Total
2roperty. plant and equipment® 0.0
Otaer non-current assets* 0.0
Trage and other receivables 0.1
Cesn and cash equivalents 0.1
Teferred tax assets” 00
Tiner current assets 03
Trace ard other payables (0.1}
Styer current liablities (0.5)
Net identified assets acquired 0.1}
S odwill 3.7
Net assets acquired 3.6
ess. Non-controlling interests (NCH 0.3
Nct assets acquired excluding NCI 33
Consideration paid 3.3

" aTountis below rounding off norms adopted by the Group

The resulting goodwill largely reflects the value of synergies and future earnings, which the Group expects to

generate from the acquisition and the knowledge of the workforce acquired. Goodwill will not be deductible
for tax purpose,
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The fair value of the acquired trade and cther receivabies is CHF 0.1 million which is equal to the g ss
contractual amount. Nong of the trade receivables is credit impaired and it is expected that the full contraciual
amounts can be collected.

The Group has elected to measure the non-contrelling interests at its fair value, The fair value is based on the
value of Docswallet determined for the acquisition (refer note 24),

The acquired business of Docswallet contributed revenue and other operating income of CHF 0.3 million ard
net loss of CHF 0.1 million to the Group from the date of acquisition to December 31, 2019.

If the acquisition of Docswallet had occurred on January 1, 2018 and i the consolidated income staterent
would have been presented for full year ended December 31, 2018, the unaudited consolidated revenue and
other operating income from the aforesaid acquisition for the year ended December 31, 2019 wolld have
been CHF 1.0 million and net prafit far the vear ended December 31. 2019 would have been CHF C.2 miihon.

The Group incurred acquisition and integration related costs of CHF 0.1 millicn as a result of the zcquisiicn
of Docswallet. These are included in ‘other operating expenses’.

{a) Purchase consideration - cash outflow
In CHF million Tatal

Cutflow of cash to acquire subsidiaries, net of cash acquired
Cash consideration 33
Less: Balances acquired

Cash and cash equivalents 10.1)
Net outflow of cash — investing activity 3.2

The amount paid for the acquisition of Docswallet is final and no further change has been made to the con-
sideration in 2020,
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2. Revenue and other operating income
[ CAF milion
2020 2019 [
Fevenue 2381 7415
Uther operating income 1.5 81
Total income 239.6 749.6

Other operating income includes income from other sources and net operational foreign exchange gains.

Revenue earned through faciiity management companies (FMC) amounts 1o CHF £0.1 million (2019 CHF
160.0 millicn).

The revenue from contract with customers is recorded at a point in time,

(i) Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities:

I Z-F million
2020 2019
Hevenue recognised that was included in apening contract habilties 11.3 117 '
i} Unsatisfied long term contract liabilities:
[ CH= million
2020 2019
Aggregate amount of fransaction price for contracts that are partially or fully unsatisfied as at
December 31, . 04

Alf contracts are for the period of ane year or less,
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(a) Salaries and other staff costs

In CHF millicn

2020 20113
Salaries 115.4 “81.0
Contribution to social securities 136 5.1
Restructuring costs 29 .
Other staff costs 19.0 277
Total Personnel expenses 150.9 227.8

Contributions to social securities comprise employer contribution/ benefit plan charges such as provident fund,
gratuity, pension eic.

Other staff costs include costs related to contract staff, leave travel allowance, medical, canteen, trainirg ard
seminar expenses etc.

Government grants {e.g. subsidies during short-time werk) primarily attributable to the reimbursemant of sai-
aries of CHF 5.3 million are reported as a reduction of salaries.

(b} Number of employees

The average number of employees (excluding contract staff) of the Group during the year is 9,999 (2279
11,008,

(¢} Share based payments

Managers working within the Group are allowed to invest in indirect shareholder (holding entities), as co-
investors along with the lead investor. If and t¢ the extent that a manager ceases his employment before: tre
occurrence of an exit event {so called leaver event) the manager grants to an indirect shareholders tha ~ght
to purchase and acquire all of his equity investments (leaver shares). The purchase price for tte lea.ers
shares will be determined, depending on the reasons for and timing of leaving, as the higher or lower ¢ the
fair market value of the leaver shares or the cost of these equity investments, The Group has no obligation to
settle the entitlements at any time {neither in the case of an exit of manager nor in the case of a leaver event
as specified in the employment contract) since an indirect shareholder will settle it. The award is acccunted
for as equity settled share based payment transaction according to IFRS 2. Since the managers had io pay
for the fair market value of the shares in course of the accession, no quantifiable benefits were granted Tre
fair value of the shares has been based on the valuation perfermed by the lead investor. Therefore, no ex-
penses have 10 be recognised at any time by the Group,

{d) Deferred bonus incentive scheme

The Group has created a deferred bonus incentive scheme to retain high performing employees who arz ~igh
on critical and scarcity scale. The expenses for the period are shown as part of salaries (refer note 20)

{e) Employee benefit obligations

The Group incurs costs for retirement benefit plans in accerdance with prevailing regutations in the court-es
in which it operates. The material defined benefit plans of the Group are managed in Switzerland They -on-
stitute 96% of the defined benefit cbiigation and 99% of the plan assets.
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Swiss pension plans

Tre Group organises the occupational pension provisions of its farmer employees, retired under the previcus
Kuoni Group, against the consequences of old age, disability and death within the framework of pension funds
that are legally and financially separated from the employer. The pension assets are entirely separated from
the assets of the relevant employing company, but alsc from the assets of the policyholders.

Tre foundation board of the pension fund is the most senior management body and consists of a number of
forner employees and an employer representative. 1t takes decisions on the content of the pension regulations
(e g the insured benetits), the financing of the pensiun (g.y. employer and cmployee premiums) and on the
management of the assets (e.g. investing the pension funds).

The pension fund is entered in the register for pccupational pension plans and is subject to a cantonal s.per-
visory authority or the Federal Social insurance Office directly for supervisory purposes depending on therr
geugraphical area of activity.

During the financial year 2020, the number of employees have decreased in Swiss entities and accordingfy
serv ce costs have also decreased. Therefore, the management assesses that circumstances have materially
changed frem 2019 and the use of the employer contribution reserve uncertain. Consequently, the employer
cortribution reserve amounting to CHF 13.2 million capitalised as at 31 December 2018 has been accounted
through consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Pension plans in other countries

In addition to the Swiss pension plans, the Group has a defined benefit gratuity pian in India being of funded
natJre which requires contributions to be made to a separately administered fund. The Group also has un-
funded defined benefit gratuity plan in United Arab Emirates (UAE) and Kingdom of Saudi Arabia (KSA) and
certain other countries.

Tre retirement benefit plans are governed by the regulatory taws of the respective countries. As per the reg-
wa'cry laws, the employee who has completed specific years of service is entitled to specific benefit. The

level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at retirement age.

The foliowing tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the consolidated income
siarement and the funded status and amounts recognised in the statement of financial position:

Nct benefit expense {recogniset in consolidated income statemant):

n ZAF miion

2020 2019
Zorrent servige cost 1.8 2.2
titerest (income) / expense 0.4 02
Acrinistrative expenses - 8.2
Net benefit expense 2.2 2.6
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Statement of other comprehensive income:

In CHF million

Actuarial losses / (gains) on experience

Actuarial losses / (gains) on assumptions

Return an plan assets, excluding amounts included in Interast — net (iIncome)expense
Change in asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in interest expense

Total actuarial losses / (gains) recognised in statement of comprehensive income

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

In CHF million

Defined benefit obligation at the heginning of the year
Interest cost

Current service cost

Benefits paid

Actuarial iosses / (gains) on experience

Actuarial losses / (gains) on assumptions

Exchange difference

Defined benafit obligation at the end of the year

Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

In CHF million

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year

Interest income

Administration expenses

Emplayer contribution

Return on planned asset excluding amounts included in interest income
Benefits paid

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year

Actual return on plan asset at the end of the year

Change in the Unrecognised asset due to the asset ceiling during the year
In CHF million

Unrecognised asset, beginning of the year

Interest on unrecognised asset recognised in the income statement

Other changes In unrecognised asset due to the asset ceiling
Unrecognised asset, end of the year

Kiwi VFS Sub | S.ar] - Consohdated financial staterments 2020

VES.GLOBAL

2020

0.5

15
(3.8)
14.8
13.0

31 Dec 2020

162.0
0.5
1.8

(10.5)
0.5
15

(0.5)

155.3

31 Dec 2020

228.5
0.2
0.2
3.8

(9.2)

223.5

0.2

31 Dec 2020

58.6

0.1
14.8
73.5
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Categories of plan assets are as follows:

For Swiss plan

Listed shares

_'sted bonds

_sted indiredt investments In real estate
_IGLIdity

Aorgages

'Nsurance contracts

Ctners

"ot

Forindia plan

Irsurer managed funds

Maovement in the net asset recognised in the statement of financial position are as fol-

lows:

n SAF million

Opening net liability/(asset)
Net berefit expense recognised
Benafits paid

Re -ineasurements — QCI
=xghange difference

Net liability/{asset) recognised in the statement of financial position

The net asset! (liability) disclosed above relates to funded and unfunded plans as fol-

iows:

I ZHF million

=nagen: vajue of funded obligation

“air value of plan assets

Urrecognised asset due to the asset celflng
Deficit / {excess) of funded asset
~rzgent value of unfunded obligations
Total defined benefit obligation

Net defined benefit asset (refer note 16)
Net defned benefit (liability) (refer note 21)

TN,

Ufs. ) VFS.GLOBAL

31 Dec 2020

8.8%
70.1%
4.2%
13.4%
0.1%
2.8%
0.6%
100.0%

100%

31 Dec 2020

{7.9)
2.2
{1.3)
3.0
(0.7)
5.3

31 Dec 2020

1506
(223.5)
73.5
0.6

4.7

5.3

(5.3)

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Group’s plans are shown below:

21 Dec 2020 Swiss india UAE Nigeria  Philippines Indonesia

Siscount rate 0.0% 5.5% 4.8% 14.0% 5.2% 7.8%

Sature salary increase® - 8.5% 4.0% 13.0% 7.0% 8.0%
“ g salary increase assumed for 2021

M Dec 2019 Swiss India UAE Nigeria  Philippines Indonesia

Ziscodnt rate 0.1% 7 2% 3.9% 14.0% 5.2% 8.0%

FLrLre salary increase - 8.5% 40% 13.0% 7.0% 8.0%
Kov i3 30kl Sarl - Consoldated Tmarcial staienents 2020
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34 Dec 2019

7.8%
63.9%
4.0%
20.8%
0.1%
2.8%
0.6%
100 Q%

100%

31 Dec 2019

(9.8}
25
(C.5)
01
(0.3
(7.9)

31 Dec 2019

157 3
(228.5)
584G
{12.9)
50
(7.9)
13.2
8.3

KSA
1.2%
4.0%

KSA
4.0%

4.0
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EST. 2L G

The assumptions for discount ratc and future salary increase are based on the prevailing economic erviron-
ment of each country wherever the obligation exists for the Group. The assumptions regarding future morality
are set based on actuarial advice in accordance with published statistics and experience in each country

A guantitative sensitlvity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:

In CHF million

Assumptions 31 Dec 2020 31 Deg 2019

Discount rate Increase {De- Increase {Decrease)
crease)

Impact on defined benefit abligations (4.2 4.3 4.3 4.4

{for Swiss pension plan. sensiivity is based on 25 bps and for ciner pen-

sion plan sensitivity is 50 bps)

Future salary increase 50 bps in- 50bps 50 bps in- 50 ¢ ns

crease {de- crease (slecraase)

crease)

Impact on defined benefit obligations 0.3 (0.3) 0.2 (" 2)

{for Swiss pension plan, there are no active employees)

The above sensitivity analysis is based on change in an assumption while holding ail other assumptions ~on-
stant. In practice, this is unlikely tc occur, and changes in seme of the assumptions may be correlated. Vihen
calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same
method (present value of the defined benefit cbligation calculated with the projected unit credit methed a: the
end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calcuiating the defined benefit liability recognized 'n
the consolidated statement of financial pesition.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared
to the prior year.

Risk exposure

Through its defined benefit plans, the Group is exposed to a number of risks, the mast significant of which are
detailed below: . 7 ‘ S 7
Asset volatility and changes in bond yields: The plan liabilites are calculated using a discoun: rate s¢t wrh
reference to yield curve from the risk free zero counurs: f 'ar
assets underperform this yield. this will create a cefict. A da-
crease in bond yields will increase plan habilities, &lthough ts
will be partially offset by an increase in the value of the alws
assets holdings.
Inflation risks: The Group's obligations are linked to salary inflation and . ner
_inflation wili lead to higher liabilities.
Life expectancy: The Group's obligation is to provide benefits for the life of tie
member, so increase in life expectancy will resutt in an increase

in the plans’ liabilities.
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The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted defined bencfit plan is as follows:
In CHFE mijllign 31 Dec 2020
Between 0 and 5 years 49.3
detween 5 and 10 years 39.3
Seyang 10 years 72.9
Total expected payments 161.5
=xpected contribution in the next year Q.2

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation (net) at the end of the reparting period
Is 1C.4 years (31 Dec 2019: 12.8 years).
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4. Other operating expenses

In CHF millicn

2020 2019
Legal and professional* 205 275
Travel expenses 2.8 14.9
Other expenses 18.7 289
Total 43,1 70.3

Other expenses include allowance / reversal for credit joss on trade receivables, bad debts written off, irtan-
gible assets written off, advances written off, marketing and advertising expenses, net loss on sate cf property
plant and equipment and other miscellaneous expenses.

* Legal and professional expenses include audit fees as mentioned below:

In CHF million

2020 2C13
Total fees of audit for the consolidated financial statements 0.9 1
Total fees of audit by non -PwC companies 0.3 0.4
Total fees for other non-audit services 0.5 2.3
Total audit fees 1.7 2.3
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5. Disposal of subsidiaries

In ZHF milhon
2020 209
L oss on dispesal of subsidiaries - Gz
Loss on sale of subsidiaries - 0.2
The Group has disposed of the following interests in subsidiaries in 2019
n SHE million
Seawave Curacao Variety Future Services Open Woerld Solution
NV S.1.0. 3N
Dete of disposal January 28, 2019 January 28, 2019 January 28, 20139
Cash consideration* 0.0 - -
Stake sold 100% 100% 100%

“arourtis below rounding off norms adopted py the Group.

The carrying value of net identifiable assets disposed of amounted to CHF Nil {2019: CHF 0.2 million) at
resoective dates, resulting in a loss on disposal of CHF Nil (2019: CHF 0.2 milfion).

Tre cash consideration of Seawave Curacao N.V. includes the consideration for Variety Future Services s.r.o.

arc Open World Solution B.V. as they are subsidiaries of Seawave Curacao N.V. The entities are sold to-
getner to the third party.
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EST. 2001

In CHF million

2020 €19
Interest income 1.6 3.4
Financial income 1.8 5.4
interest expenses and bank charges (42.5) i12.5%
intetest expenses on fease liabilities (7.2} 8.5y
Non-operational exchange gain /{loss) (net)” 27.7 ‘5.5
Financial expenses (22.0) (35.4)
l.oss on sale of subsidiaries {refer note 5) - 0.2y
Fair value gain / {loss) on acquisition of investments accounted for using equity method (refer - 0.6y
note 12}
Change in contingent consideration for acquisitions {refer note 19) - (5.2
Total financial result (20.4) (31.3)

* includes entities share in OCI (exchange difference on translation of foreign coperations) reclassified to the consolidated income sigte v 't or
change in control n 2018,

Interest income consists of interest received on time deposits placed with banks and interest unwinding on
security deposits.

Interest expenses and bank charges consist of interest paid on loans taken from banks and relatad par es
{refer note 26), interest on deferred consideration for non-cantroiting interests and other bank charges.
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7. Income taxes

This note provides an analysis of the Group’s income tax expenses, shows what amounts are recognised
drectly in equity and how the income tax expenses are affected by non-assessable and non-deductible items.
It also explains significant estimates made in relation to the Group's tax paosition.

Income tax expenses

I SAF mullon 2020 2019
Cutent year expenses {4.9) (40.6)
Changes in estimales related to prior years — (expenses)/income (net) 0.5 0.3
Curent tax expenses {4.4) (40.3)
{Cecrease)/increase in deferred tax assets B.6 0.4
D zcreased{increase) in deferred tax liabilities 13.7 8.3
Deferred tax (expenses)/ income 22.3 8.7

income tax benefits/(expenses) 17.9 {31.6)

Tre Company is incorporated in Luxembourg but almost all of the operations of the Group are located in
var:ous countries outside of Luxembourg with their differing tax laws and rates. As the Group's consolidated
incame s predominantly earned cutside of Luxembourg. corporate income tax in foreign jurisdictions largely
detarmines the weighted-average global tax rate of the Group. The weighted-average tax rate is calculated
by aggregating earning before tax or loss in each country in which the Group cperates multiplied by the re-
spective country's statutory income tax rate. The weighted average tax rate is 15.5% for the financial year
2020 (2019: 19.2%;}. As the interest-bearing debt is predominantly issued at the level of holding companies
without income from business operations. the taxable income in the operating business entities is net largely
reduced by the corresponding interest expenses. The weighted-average effective tax rate will vary from year
to year depending on the earnings mix by country and changes in statutory tax rates of respective country.

Analysis of tax rate

The main elements contributing to the difference between the Group's weighted average tax rate as explained
above and the effective tax rate are as below:

Ir Z2HF millien 2020 2019
=earmings/{loss) before taxes (185.3) 59.3
Tax penefits/iexpenses) using the weighted avérage tax rate 287 (15.3)
Nen-ax-deductible expenses 6.7 (4.1
lax-free income? 5.4 2.9
=fet of overseas tax rates ** 0.0 74
Zieat of overseas withhalding tax an dividends and others (1.1 (12 7)
ax effect from current losses, not eligibie for recognition as assats (13.7) {13.5)
Seferred tax reversal on undistributed earrings in Group's subsid aries 4.2 1.4
Tax effect on farr value gain on acquisition of investment accounted using equity method - ez
<hization of tax loss carry forwards not recognized in the incorre statement 05 3.4
lax ircomre for prior years 0.5 13
Ders” 0.0y (0.2;
Income tax benefits/(expanses) 17.9 (31.6}
“festve tax rate 9.7% 45 5%

*ar1aunt s below rounding off norms adoeptea by the Group
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Es=. 2001

" coming from jurisdictions where there are tax holidays or income tax rates are lower/higher than Company's weighted average iax rate

* the numbers for the previous year have been realigned censidering weighted average tax rates for comparative purpose

* coming from Jurisdictions where certain income are exempt from taxes

The Group has a substantial business presence in many countries and is therefore subject to different ircame
and expense items that are non-taxabie (permanent differences) or taxed at different rates in those tay ~.is-
dictions. This results in a difference between our applicable tax rate and effective tax rate, as shown i the
table above.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has CHF 9.7 million (December 31, 2019; CHF 1.8 million) as de‘ered
tax assets on losses that can be carried forward. The losses were triggered by the Covid-1% pandemic which
is considered as temporary impact on business and the Group expects to be able to use these deferrac tax
assets against earnings in the foreseeable future,

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised for an unused tax carry forward in respect of certain loss-maxing
group entities since currently it is not considered probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be avaiable
against which the tax losses can be utilised. If the Group was able to recognise all unrecognised deferred tax
assets. the earnings for the year would increase by CHF 13.7 million (December 31, 2018: CHF 13 5 mllism)
which would lead to a reduction in effective tax rate of the Group.

The Group has the following unrecognised tax loss carry forwards which will expire in future years:

In CHF millien 31 Dec 2020 31 2052018
Upto 1 year 0.1 1.3
110 5 years 111 3.3
Over 5 years 1.5 4.3
Unlimited 33.0 5.7
Total 55.7 151
Deferred taxes changed as follows:
In CHF million 2020 2617
Deferred tax assets 8.0 g7
Deferred tax hahiiities {74.4) 1227
Deferred tax liabilities as at 1 January (net) (65.4) (74.0)
Changes recognised in the consolidated income statement (net) 223 3.7
Changes through OCI” 0.0 0.
Currency translation differences (0.6) 10.1)
Deferred tax liabilities as at 31 December {net) {43.7) (55.4)
Deferred tax assets 17.6 R
Deferred tax liabilities (61.3) ‘rd.4)

*amount is below roundmg off norms adopted by the Group

Deferred taxes are derived from the below table of statement of financial position items:

In CHF millicn

Trade and other receivables

Property, plant and equipment/nght-of-use assets
Intangible assets

Accrued expenses and provisions

Recognised tax losses

Deferred taxes deriving from timing differences {net}
Tax effect on undistributed retained earnings of subsiciaries
Total

Kiw. WFS Sub | S.ar | — Cansoldated financial statements 2020

Deferred tax
assets
31 Dec 2020

0.7
5.1
0.3
i8
9.7
17.6

17.6

Deferred fax h-
abilities
31 Dec 2020

{0.5)
(57.4)

(57.9)
(3.4
(61.3)

Deferred 1ax
assels
31 Dec 2019

5.1
2.3
1.6
9.0

9.0

Daferrat tan h-
asilites

31 Den 2019

11.2)

25.6)

(66.8)
178
(74.4)
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EST. 2001

At December 31, 2020, the recognised deferred tax liability is CHF 3.4 million {December 31, 2019: CHF 7.6
million) for taxes that would be payable on the undistributed retained earnings of the Group's subsidiaries.

Deferred tax liability has not been recognised on currency translation of the financial statements of the Group's
cverseas subsidiarigs as the liability will only crystailise in the event of disposal of any of its Group entities
and no such materiai disposal is expected in the foreseeable future.
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8. Property, plant and equipment

In CHF million

Cost as at 1 January 2019

Additions

Acquisitions an account of business combinations
(refer note 1)*

Disposals

Transfers

Currency translation differences

Cost as at 31 December 2019

Accumulated depreciation as at 1 January 2019

Depreciation
Disposals
Currency translation differences

Accumulated depreciation as at 31 December
2019

Net book value as at 31 December 2019
Cost as at 1 January 2020

Additions
Disposals
Transfers
Currency translation differences
Cost as at 31 December 2020

Accumulated depreciation as at 1 January 2020

Depreciation
Disposals
Currency translation d fferences

Accumulated depreciation as at 31 December
2020

Net book value as at 31 December 2020

Construc-
tion waork-
in-progress

4.7

1.5

4.0
0.1
2.3

2,3

2.3

1.2
0.1
2.2)
(0.1

1.1

1.1

T ameunt 1s below reunding off norms adopted by the Group

**inctudes leasehold improvements

Fixtures and equip-
ment **

58.7

15.9
0.0

{5.1)

4.0
(08
73.7

{16.9)

(18.2)
34
0.5

{31.2)

42.5

73.7

5.5
4
22
{(12.2)
64.5

(31.2)
(13.4)
3.8

6.8
{34.2)

30.3

Other tangible assets mainly consist of IT assets and vehicles.

VFS.GLORAL

Cther tangible
assets

14.8

8.1

(2.0

(1.1
19.8
{11.2)
(5.6)
1.9
11
{13.8)
6.0

19.8

5.8
©.7)

(3.9)
21,0

(13.8)
(5.2)
0.6

2.9
(45.5)

5.5

EST 2001

To'altang ne

8 s

7.2

ShE

)

[
“5 8

123 1)

238

(]

i45.0)

1% 6)
4.2
a7

‘49.7)

16,9

During the financial year 2020, the Group has surrendered various leased premises based on i's revised
business plan and accordingiy related furniture. fixtures and leasehold impravements have been disposed.

Depreciation is charged to the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimatac
usefui lives of the items of property, plant and eauipment concerned.
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£57. 2001
The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Years

Leasehold Improvements 5-10-

Fixtures and equipment 3-b

IT Hardware, office equipment and vehicles (Other tangible assets) 3-5

= 1C years or actual contract life, whicheveris less

Tre asset's residual value and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting date. Please refer to significant accounting policies note {x1) tor more details.
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0. Leases

{a)

(b)

The Group has lease contracts for premises, vehiclas, furniture and equipment. Lease contracts are tyninally
made for fixed periods ranging from 1 year to 14 years including extension options wherever appl canl= as
described in (a) below.

Effective January 1, 2019 on adoption of IFRS 16. as per maodified simplified transition approach, |zaseas are
now recognised as the right-of-use assets, measured at the amount equal to the lease liabilities onr the iran-
sition date, adjusted by the amcunt of any lease accruals/prepayments. These liabilities were measurcd at
the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate
as of January 1, 2018. There were no cnerous lease contracts that would have required an adjustment to the
right-of-use assets at the time of transition.

Each lease payment is aliocated between the principal payment of lease liabilities and interest expers= on
the lease liabilities. The interest expense is charged to the consolidated income statement over the izasa 'enr
by using the effective rate of interest methodology. The right-of-use assets are depreciated on a st-aight-ire
basis over the lease term.

The lease terms and accounting thereof

Lease term is negotiated on an individual contract basis and contains a wide range of different terrs ard
conditions. The lease contracts do not impose any covenants other than the security interest in the laused
assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets are not to be used as security for borrowing purnoses,

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease payments based on an index or -ate.
which are not included in the initial lease liabilities untii the event occurs. The adjustments to lease payments
based on change in index or rate and the lease liabilities are reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-
use assets.

Extension and termination cptions are included in a number of lease contracts for varicus cffice premises ard
visa application centres having varying terms escalation clauses and renewal rights. On renewal, the terms
of the leases are renegotiated. These terms are negotiated by the managemaent to provide flexihility in man-
aging the leased-asset portfolio and align with the Group's business needs, The management exercises sig-
nificant judgement in determining whether these extension and termination options are reasonably certa n to
be exercised. Refer note 4(ii){e)({i) Key judgements, management estimates and assumptions in the sigr:f.cant
accounting policies for details.

Right-of-use assets
Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the year:
| of-use as
In CHF million Premises Others Total right -of-u (‘.‘,:l
Cost as at 1 January 2019 115.3 0.3 1156
Additions 28.2 3.9 321
Disposals (1.0 - (L
Currency transiation differences™ 0.7 6.0 a7
Cost as at 31 December 2019 143.2 4.2 147.4
Accumuiated depreciation as at 1 January 2019 - - -
Depreciation (38.0) (0.7) (237
Disposals 0.1 R 1
Currency transiation differences 0.n - RN
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Accumulated depreciation as at 31 Decermber 2018 {38.0 {0.7) (38.7)
Net book value as at 31 December 2019 1056.2 3.5 108.7
Cost as at 1 January 2020 143.2 4.2 147.4
~dditions 30.8 05 31.4
{ispesals® (23.9) (0.0 (23.9)
Currengy translation differences* (14.4) a0 (14.4)
Utker Adjustments 0.4) - (0.4)
Cost as at 31 December 2020 1235.3 4.8 140.1
accumulated depreciation as at 1 January 2020 (38.0) {0.7) (38.7)
[ epecation (38.2) {1.0} (39.2)
Ihspesals® 11.8 0.0 1.8
C urrency translation differences* 77 0.0 7.7
Accumulated depreciation as at 31 December 2020 (56.7} {1.7) (58.4)
Net book value as at 31 December 2020 78.6 31 81.7

“a~ ountis below rounding off norms adopted by the Group
Ctrers include vehicles, fixtures and equipment.

{c) Lease liabilities
Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease lfabilities recognised and the movements during the year:

i S=F milhon 31 Bec 2020 31 Dec 2019
Balance as at 1 January 106.7 110.4
Agduon:

New leases during the year 31.3 32.1

Iterest expenses 7.2 8.5
_ess:

t ease payments (including interest) (31.0) (42 4}

Rent concessions (5.2)

isposal {11.3) (0

GCurrency translation differences (5.9) (1.0
Balance as at 31 December 91.8 106.7
on-cutrent 51.4 1.3
Cunent 40.4 354
Total lease liabilities 91.8 106.7

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 25.

{¢) Amount recognised in the consolidated income statement

T-e cornsolidated income statement shows the following amounts refating to IFRS 16

Ir Z2d* mitlion

2020 2079
Depreciation on right-of-use assets
Prarmisas (38.2) (38.C)
Ctiers (1.0} {C.7)
Total depreciation on right-of-use assets (39.2) {38.7)
nlzrest expense on lease liabililies {part of financial result) (7.2) 8.5
=xpansea relating to shor-term leases (part of rent and facilives expenses) {(2.7) (5.7}
Zovernment grants received for rental expense (part of rent and facilties expenses) 01 -
“xgense relaling to leases of low-value assets that are not showr above as short-term leases (part of
it and facilities expenses)” (G.0) (0.G)

*an odntis below rounding off norms adopted by the Group
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During the financial year 2020, the Group has surrendered various leased premises based on i's revised
business plan and accordingly related right-of-use-assets and lease liabilities have been dispused. The addi-
ticnal cost incurred on surrendered premises is accounted under rental and facilities expenses in the conscl
idated income statement.

As at 31 December 2020, potential future cash outflows of CHF 13.4 million (2019; CHF 17.9 mullion) {urdis-
counted) have not been included in the lease liabilities as per below table:

In CHF million 31 Dec 2020 31 Jec 0 C
Not reasonably certain that the leases will be extended (or not terminated). 13.3 17
Tawards short-term leases 0.4 RS

Leases not yet commenced but to which the Group is committed. . 07

Total 13.4 170
Amount recognised in the consolidated income statement regarding the rent concessions

During the financial year 202C, the IASB has provided optiona!l practical expedient for lessees from assessirg
whether a rent concession related to Covid-18 is a lease modification. The practical expedient only appiies to
rent concessions for lessees occurring as a direct conseguence of the Covid-19 pandemic and enly if 2l of
the following conditions are met:

s the change in lease payments result in revised consideration for the lease that is substantiail. the

same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change,
s any reduction in lease payments affect only payments originally due on or before 30 June 2027,
« there is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the iease.

The Group has applied the practical expedient to all qualifying rent concessions from January 1. 202C The

Group has accounted for rent concessions of CHF 5.2 million during the financial year 2020 as variable lcase
payments and as a reduction from rent and facilities expenses.
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7 GAF milfion
Customer Brands IT Software Intangible un-  Tetal intangible as-
Relationships der develop- sets
ment

Costas at 1 January 2019 277.5 120.3 21.0 7.0 425.8
Sdaions - - 13.9 53 16.2
IMspesals! Write off - - 0.2 2.4) (28
Transfers - - 1.1 (1.1}
Currency ransfation differences” 0.7 - 0.4 0.0 1.1
Cost as at 31 December 2019 278.2 120.3 36.2 3.8 443.5
Accumulated amortisation as at 1 January {70.9) {15.5) (12.7) - (99.1)
2019
-merisation (43.2) 16.0) (5.8) - (55.0)
lispesals - - 0.1 - CA
(.urrecy translation differences (0.3) - (0.2 - (0.5)
Accumulated amortisation as at 31 Decem- (114.4) {21.5) {18.6) - {154.5}
ber 2019
Net hook value as at 31 December 2019 163.8 98.8 17.6 8.8 289.0
Cost as at 1 January 2020 278.2 120.3 36.2 8.8 443.5
fduit.ons - - 2.2 1.0 3.2
Trarsfer - - 5.4 (6.4) -
(.urrency translation differences (1.8) - (3.3} (0.6) (5.7)
Cost as at 31 December 2020 276.4 120.3 41.5 2.8 441.0
Accumulated amartisation as at 1 January (114.4) {21.5) (18.6) - (154.5)
2020
smorisation (33.9) (8.1 (6.5 - (45.5)
Impar ment - - (4.8 - (4.8}
Curency translation differences 1.3 - 2.4 - 3.7
Accumulated amartisation as at 31 Decem- {147.0) {27.8) (27.5) - (202.1)
Ler 2020
Net book value as at 31 December 2020 129.4 92.7 14.0 2.8 238.9

“avrount s below rounding off norms adopted by the Group

Curing the financial year 2020, the Group has impaired certain intangible assets based on revised busness
p:an due to the impact of Covid-19 and accordingly an amount of CHF 4.8 million has been accounted in the
corsolidated income statement as impairment of other intangible assets.

Amortisation is charged to the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated
usefuliives of the items of other intangible assets concerned.
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The estimated useful lives ara as follows:
Years
Brands 5.20-
Customer relationships 1-10*
IT software 3-5

T determined as per purchase price allocation report and the management evaluation.

The asset’s residual value and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of ~ach
reporting date. Refer to significant accounting policies note (xii)(b) for more details,
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n ZHF millien
2020 2019
Cost as at 1 January 976.0 961.6
Acd tions (refer riate 1) - 3.7
Zunency translation differences (25.9) 10.7
Coest as at 31 December 950.1 0976.0

The carrying amount of cash-generating units (CGU) (refer note xviii of summary of significant accounting
pol cies) to which goodwill is allocated is tested at least annually for impairment, or if indicators or conditions
suggest that its carrying amount can no longer be recovered, An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the goodwill's carrying value exceeds its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of the CGU of the Group s based on a value-in-use calculation. which is determined
framn cash flow projections that are themselves based on the latest business plan approved by the manage-
men: and presented to the Board of Directors of VFS Global AG (indirect subsidiary of the Company) and a
tertn:nal year equal to the last year forecasted cash flow in the business plan. This plan includes the latest
management estimates on revenue and margin trends and on projected operating costs. The future savings
resuiting from initiatives not started in financial year 2020 or requiring future investments have been excluded
from the cash flows prepared for the impairment test,

Du-ing the financial year 2020, the uncertainty about the future cash flows is adjusted by different probability-
weighted cash fiow projections that represent the management's best estimate of the range of economic
carditions that will exist over the remaining useful life of the asset or CGU and accordingly, the Group has
usea weighted cash flow projecticns for the business plan {refer note 4{i}{b) Key judgements, management
est mates and assumptions in the significant accounting policies for details).

Tre discount rate has been calculated on the basis of the weighted average capital costs of the Group. with
regard to country and currency-specific risks relating to cash flows,

The Group is considered as a single CGU and accordingly the carrying value allocated is CHF 950.1 m:lfien
{December 31. 2019 CHF §76.0 millicn). The following assumptions are used for assessing value in use.

31 Dec 2020 3% Dec 2019
“grruinal growth rate 1.3% 15%
lax rate 26.8% 25.0%
Pre-lax discount rate 12.6% 12.0%
Sesi-lax discount rate 9.9% 9.5%

The result of the valuation confirmed that no impairment charge is required in financial year 2020 and 2019

Tre management has determined the values assigned to each of the above key assumptions as follows

fssumption Approach used to determine the vaiues

Fevehue growth Revenue has Deen adjusted until the end of 2623 when ‘he pus-
ness is expected {0 recover to pre Covid-19 levels, Average organic
annual growth rate over the next two-year forecast perioa starting
fram 2024 based on current industry trends including long tarm
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inflation forecasts for each territory. Further, due to the L 2tar-

ligs inn lhe current environment weighted scenarios have ocen used

to determine the cash flows (refer 4{i}(b})) of signi‘icant ac auniing
policres).
EBITDA growth Based on revenue cptimization measures and cost ritiasnos taken

during 2020, EBITDA margin is expected 1o increase till 2 25

Annual capital expenditure Expecled cash costs in the CGUs. No major capex ha' 131 2.
visaged during the 2021, Starting from 2022, the canax ' fsed o0
the historical experience of the management and ke plz »~ad re-
furbishment expenditure. No incremental revenue ar ccs: savings
are assumed in the value-in-use model as a resu't > th's 1roende-
ture,

Terminal growth rate This is average growth rate used to extrapolate cash flov: neyond
the five-year forecast period. The rates are as par travel dustry
standards.

Pre-tax discount rates Reflect spacific risks refating to the countries in which t:.e group
operates.

The maragement believes that any reasonably possible changes in key assumptions on which tha recovera-
ble amount is based would not cause the carrying amount to exceed its recoverahle amount.

Sensitivity analysis
The management conducted sensitivity anaiysis for the Group (CGU) based on:

- Business recovery assumptions: one scenario forecasts a quicker recovery due to the accelerated
vaccine roll out, another scenario forecasts a slower recovery pace due to the new strains (refer ~ote
4(i)(b} Key judgements, managemeant estimates and assumptiens in the significant accouiting coi-
cies for details)

- Sensitivities on revenues and profitability. a decrease of the revenues by 10% (all operating cos's
being kept unchanged) impacts the value in use by (27%) and a decrease of EBITDA margin by 5%
impacts the value in use by (17%).

- Sensitivity on discount rate: an increase 'n post-tax discount rates by 100 basis point will mpact value
in use by (12%).

None of the sensitivities considered leads to any impairment charge for the financial year 2020,

The assessment of the recoverable amount of goodwill allocated is most sensitive to the achievement of the
budget of 2021 and the business plan of 2022-2025. Budget and business plan comprise forecast o reverue,
personnel expenses and other operating expenses based on current and anticipated market conditiors that
have been considered and approved by the management and presented to the Board of Directors of VFS
Global AG (indirect subsidiary ¢f the Company). Whilst the Group can manage most of the costs, the revenue
projections based on applicant volumes are inherently uncertain due to the unstable market conditions, as it
highly depends on how the Covid-19 pandemic evolves and its impact on the econemy and on the travel
industry. Revenue is most sensitive to immigration restrictions for discretionary long-haul travels, while non-
discretionary, short-haul and land routes travel is gradually starting to recover as a result of early roll-out of
vaccination during Q1 of 2021.

VFS believes that the fundamental value drivers for the business remain intact and are supported by szcular
growth trends. As the long-term outleok does not materially change, the negative impact on the value r use
created by the current market conditions does not trigger any risk of impairment.
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12. Investments accounted for using the equity method

The Group has entered into share purchase agreemant for its existing subsidiary PT VFS Tashee! Indonesia
whareby the controlling interest has been shared with the other partner and accordingly, the subsidiary has
been considered as joint venture effective from January 1, 2019. This entity is engaged in the business of
providing visa processing services for Kingdom of Saudi Arabia in indonesia. During the financial year 2015,
the Group has derecognised the assets and liabilities on the date of conversion to joint venture and has
accounted gain of CHF 0.¢ million due to ¢hange in control as part of retaned earnings on January 1, 2019.
During 2019, the Group has accounted for a loss of CHF 0.8 millien as tarr value loss tor the joint venture in
the consolidated income statement, as part of financial result (refer note §).

The Group is not entitled to any share in the profits upte a threshold defined under the share purchase agree-
men: naither it is entitled to any losses. During the current financial year 2020, the profils of such joint venlure

has not exceeded the threshold defined and hence no further disclosure is made to this effect.

During the financial year 2020, the joint venture entity i.e. VFS Chanwanich DMCC has been liquidated. There
i$ ro financial impact due te liquidation of the joint venture on the consolidated income statement.

Mow PSS Sa Sarl — Consoucated financial staterr ents 2020 Pages 631 14




VFS.GLOBAL

EST. 2001

13. Trade receivables

In CHF million

31 Dec 2020 31 Dec2. )
Trade receivables ((Gross) 25.1 2n 7
Allowances for credit loss (9.1 (3
Trade receivables (Net) 16.0 25.4

Trade receivables have the following payment maturities:

In CHF million

31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2013
Payment not yet due g.1 173
Payment overdue 1 to 30 days 1.9 8.3
Payment cverdue 31 to 60 days 1.3 1.7
Payment overdue 61 to 90 days 0.9 1.5
Payment overdue by mare than 90 days 11,2 3.3
Allowances far credit loss {9.1) 17.2)
Total 16.0 2%.4

Allowances for credit loss have the following development:

In CHF million 2020 019
Allowances for credit loss - opening as at 1 January 7.3 4.3
Addition / (released} during the year 6.0 3.3
Write off during the year (3.6} 14.C
Currency translation differences {0.6) :0.1)
Allowances for credit loss - closing as at 31 December 9.1 7.3

Allowante for credit loss in refation to receivables is as follows:

In CHF million

31 Dec 2020 31 Des 2012
Amount not due 0.3 nn
Between 1 to 30 days 0.1 1A
Between 31 to 60 days 0.2 21
Between 61 to 50 days 0.2 24
More than 80 days past due 8.3 3.3

8.1 7.3
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14. Cash and cash equivalents

I SHEF million

31 Dec 2020 3t Dec 201§
Cash al bank and in hand 128.6 58.9
Time deposits with original term of up to 90 days 6.7 17.8
Total 135.3 86.7

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following currencies in which the Group mainly oper-
ates:carries out activities.

in ZrF million
31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019

usD 43.5 287
CHF 324 1.3
GBP 23.7 2.1
FLR 2.6 0.3
Otners 33.0 543
Total 135.3 B6.7

Cash and cash eguivalents and Investment in bank deposits {included in other financial assets) are restricted
to the extent of CHF 2.7 million as at December 31, 2020 (December 31, 2019: CHF 0.6 million).

Cash pooling arrangements are used by Group to manage liguidity, maximise the overall interest re-
ceived/minimise the overall interest paid on overdraft balances respectively and minimise credit risk exposure
to bank counterparties. Conseguently, cash pool balances of entities within the Group have been netted off
and the net cash asset after adjustment of overdraft amounting to CHF 2.3 million (2018: CHF 26.1 millior)
has been reflected as part of the balances above.
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15. Other financial assets

In CHF millicn

Non-current
Other financial assets
Total

Current

Unbilled revenue

Investment in bank deposits {having maturity of more than three months)
Other financial assets

Total

Other financial assets mainly comprise of security deposits.

VES.GLOB#L

E5ST. 2061
31 Dec 2020 31 Cew 2017
16.2 203
16.2 20.8
18.7 219
2.8 0.9
1.0 '5
205 243

The Group has assessed the credit icss on the financial assets and does not foresee any impairment riskc in

the financial assets.
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16. Other assets

W1 SHE million

Nen-current
- miployee benefit plan (refer note 3)
Total

Current
Frepayments

ners
Total

Others mairly include balances with statutory authorities and advances to suppliers.

Kiv VF3 Supi Sarl - Conschidated financial statements 2020

31 Dec 2020

26
16.5
19.1

31 Dec 2018
122

13.2

8.C
18.8
26.9
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17. Borrowings

tn CHF million

31 Dec 2020 31 Cer 2013
Financiai debts from third parties 861.6 828.2
Financial debts from related parties {refer note 26) 145.7 -
Total 1,007.3 828.2
Of which-
Non-current 9447 8204
Current” 52.6 73

“current includes the principal portion of revelving credit facilities of CHF 46 8 milhgn, The revolwrg credit facilities 1s a rolling facilty and wil | & ava lenla bl
financial year 2023,

The current portion includes interest accrued but not yet due of CHF 8.8 million (2018 CHF .1 million:,

Financial debts from third parties are majorly denominated in GBP, EUR, CHF, USD, INR, DZD, RUB curen-
cies (December 31, 2019: GBP, EUR, INR and BZD currencies), with a weighted average nterest ra'e of
3.6% {December 2019; 4.0%), based on various inter-bank offer rates.

The debts denominated in GBP and EUR have buillet repayment which is due for repayment in 2024 anc are
secured by the pledge of shares of VF Warldwide Holdings Ltd. and its subsidiaries (indirect subs.diarics of
the Company)

All loans between the Group and related parties are governed by contracts with weighted average interast
rates of 4.9% (2019: n/a) and a fixed maturity. These loans are accounted for as non-current liabiities i the
maturity date is beyond one year and as current liability if the maturity date is within a year.

The financial debt from third parties includes the bank loans and an amount of CHF 1.4 million (221¢ THF
Nil} are backed by guarantee from the local governments. These loans are received at a concessional rale of
interest ranging from 0% to 0.8%. The fair value of the government backed loans loan accounted is CHI ~ 4
million.

During 2020, the Group has renegotiated with lenders whereby the existing net debt covenant has bean "e-
placed with minimum liquidity covenant of CHF 40 million until March 31, 2022. The liquidity covenant nas

been met as at December 31,2020,

In addition, there are facilities of CHF 33.4 million which are undrawn as at December 31, 2020 whch wll ke
available for utilisation for the Group operating activities.

Movement of financial debts:

In CHF millicn

Financial debts COpening  Additions Repayment* Interest Interest  Transaction Foreign Closing
1Jan Capital-  accrued Cost  exchange 31 Dec
2020 ised difference 2020

Third Parties 828.2 56.6 6.2) - 7.7 1.9 (26 8) 861.6

Related parties - 143.1 - 1.5 1.1 - - 145.7

*include repayment of interest accrued of CHE 5.1 millian.
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in ZHF million

fFinancial debts Opening Adudi-
1 Jan tiens
2019

Third Parties 833.4 0.8

RRelated parties - -

Repay-

ment*

*rehute repayment of interest accrued of CHF 5.1 million.

div F35uci%ar - Consoidated financiat statements 2020

Interest
Capitai-
ised

Interest

accrued

51

—_——
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Transaction Foreign Closing
Cost exchange 31 Dec
difference 2018

28 (4.7) 28,2
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18. Trade and other payables

tin CHF millien

31 BGec 2020 31 Le 2019
Trade payables 121.1 578
Other payables 2.5 3.3
Total 123.6 166.1

Trade payakbles include accrued liabilities and payable tc embassies, related party and Other payables mainly
include payables for capital expenditure and derivate financial instruments.

For balance outstanding with related parties refer note 26.
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19. Other financial liabilities

I SHFE millien

31 Dec 2020 3
Non-current
[eferred consideration on acquisition of non-controlling interests (refer note 23) 38.5
Total 39.5
Current
Deferred consideration on acguisitien of non-controlling interests (reter note 23) 15,5
Centingent consideration on acguisition of Eimad group 4.6
Total 201

Dec 201¢

-4

,,
L
B NN

The deferred consideration on acquisition of non-controlling interests include interest accrued based on ef-
fective interest rate method and the interest expense is recognised as part of financial result in the consol-
dated income statement. The exchange fluctuation on financial liabilities has been accounted in the consoli-

dated income statement under financial resuit.

The Group has renegotiated the payment schecule of the deferred consideration on acquisition of non-con-
troling interests and re-recognised the financiai iability based on the new terms. The deferred consideration
inciuding interest on acquisition of non-controlling interests will be paid over a period of time until 2023.

The nayment for contingent consideration on acquisition of Etimad group has been deferred with no additional

cost.

The Group has paid contingent consideration of CHF 16.2 million for acquisition of VFST/Vasco and Etimad
Group in 2019. There has been a change in contingent consideration of CHF 0.2 million for VFST/Vasco which

has bheen recognised as part of financial result in the consolidated income statement in 2019,
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20. Other liabilities

In CHF mutiion

Non-current

Centract liabilities
Emplayee related liabilities
Totat

Current

Employee related liabilities
Contract liabilites

Other statutory liabilities
Others

Total

Others include advances received from customers in 2020 and 2019,
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31 Dec 2020

140
1.0

238
14.3
4.9
43
47.3

2 Led «C13

0.4

0.4

153
*3.3
73
1.4
31.9
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21. Provisions

ir CHF millicn
Srovision for litiga- Provisions Total
tion/ tax matters for person-
nel-related
costs
Provisions as at 1 January 2019 13.0 8.8 21.8
Ada tions - 5.3 5.3
Utn-ed {0.5) (1.8} (2.3)
Released (1.8 - (1.8)
Cuniency translation differences 0.2 (0.1 0.1
Provisions as at 31 December 2019 10.9 12.2 23.1
Provisions as at 1 Janvary 2020 10.8 12.2 231
Aad tions 0.4 5.3 57
Utiised - {4.1) (4.1)
Reaic-ased {0.2) - (0.2)
Currency translation differences (0.1} (0.9) (1.0)
Provisions as at 31 December 2020 1.0 128 2315
Of vshich
In CHF million
31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019
Nor-current 149 148
Current 88 8.3
Total 23.5 2341

The provision for litigation and tax matters represents provision created in respect of claims arising out of
pending ltigations and provisions created for certain taxation matters which will be utilised/released once the
ma:ters are settled.

Tre personnel-related cost provisions relate to provision for leave encashment and retirement benefits in
accerdance with the labour laws of the respective countries {refer note 3).
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22. Equity

The share capital of the Company as of December 31, 2020 consists of 15,924 541 authorized and registzred
shares with nominal value of CHF 1.00 each amounting to CHF 15.9 million. All shares are held by Kiw: [V
and are fully paid-up.

The authorized and registered shares comprises of 13,000 Shares of Class A and 1,767.949 Shares each of
Class BCDEF GH,|IlandJ.

Capital Contribution/ Distribution to owners/ Capital redemption

On 10 February 2020. the Company entered into capital contribution agreement with shareholder and received
ar amount of CHF 1.7 million by means of capital contribution without issuance of new shares. During 2019,
the Company has received capital contributicn in kind of CHF 1.3 million against the receivables fror Kiw:
VES Sub I by Kiwi IV.

Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

Each class of equity shares have a par value of CHF 1.0 per share and are entitled to one vote per sharz. In
the event of dividend declaration, such dividend shall be allocated and paid to Class A shares (0.05% o its
nominal value), Class B shares (0.10% of its nominal value), Class C shares {(0.15% of its nomiral vaius).
Class D shares (0.20% of its nominal value), Class E shares (0.25% of its nominal value), Class F shares
{0.30% of its nominal value), Class G shares {0.35% of its nominal value), Ciass H shares (0<0% of iis
nominal value) and Class | shares (0.45% of its nominal value). The balance shall be allocated to tte ha'1ers
of Class J shares pursuant to a decision taken by the general meeting of the Shareholders.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of each class of equity shares will be entitled to recsive
assets of the Company remaining after settlement of all liabifities. The distribution will be in properiion to tre
number of equity shares held by each class of equity shareholders.

Legal Reserve

As per Luxembourg regulations and articles of incorperation of the Company, the Company has to allocaie to
iegal reserve a minimum of 5% of the standalone net profit, if any and urtil such reserve reaches 10% of the
share capital, distribution of the legal reserve is restricted. As at December 31, 2020 the legal reserve amo.nts
to CHF 0.3 milion (2019 CHF 0.3 miftion).

Capital management

The capital administered by the Group corresponds to the consolidated equity. The Group aims in ad~inis-
tering this capital to:

- maintain the sound structure of its statement of financial position based on geing concern valus:.
- maintain the financial scope required for future investments and acquisitions,

- ensure a return for investors that are commensurate with their investment risk.

During 2020, the Group has not borrowed funds from third party for new acquisitions. The Group doz2s not
consider the borrowings as part of capital administration.
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The Group administers its equity by means of iis statement of financial position equity ratic, i.e. the proportion
of equity to total assets. The equity ratio amounted to 7.6% as of December 31, 2020 (December 31, 2016
19.2%)

11 ZHF miliion
31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019

£ quity attributable to shareholders of Kiwi VFS Sub | S.a.r!

thare capital 15.9 16.6
Share premium 143.2 1432
Otner reserve/retained earnings/ translations reserves (42.9) 156 2
Men-controlling interests 0.2 a3
Jotal equity 116.4 315.6
1otal assets 1,837.6 1.640 5
Equity -atio 7.6% 10.24%
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23. Non-controlling interests (NCI)

During the financial year 2019, the Group acquired 90.6% of the issued share capital of Tharakan Web Inno-
vation Private Ltd ("Docswallet"}. Docswallet. incorperated in India. is a provider of digital wallet solution wi-¢h
mests emerging trends in document verification. The non-controlling interests amounting to CHF 0.3 m llign
as at December 31, 2019 has been calculated for the balance 9.4% stake in Docswallet. During the financial
year 2020, loss of CHF 0.1 million has been allocated to non-controlling interests.

During 2020, the Group made payment of CHF 14.2 million towards deferred consideration (2019 CHF 36.5
million). The deferred consideration relates to acquisition of NCl acguired in 2018. During financial year 2220,
the Group has renegotiated the payment schedule of the deferred consideration with additional interest ard
naw the deferred consideration will be paid over a periad of time until 2023 (refer note 19).
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24 . Fair value measurement

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as of December 31, 2020 are as
follows

Ip CHF million

31 Dec 2020
Notes Amortisad  Financial assets/  Financial Total carry- Total fair
cost liabitities at fair assets/ lia- ing value value *
value through bilities at
profit and ioss fair value
through OCI
=inancial assets
Trade receivables 13 16.0 - - 16.0 16.0
Cash and cash equivalents 14 135.3 - - 135.3 135.3
O:ker financial assets ** 15 36.7 - - 38.7 36.7
Total 188.0 - - 188.0 188.0
= niancial habilities
S0 TOWINGS 17 1,007.3 . - 1,607.3 1.007.3
Traoe and other payables 18 1233 - - 123.3 123.3
Cenvative financials instruments 18 - - 0.3 03 0.3
.23se habilities 9 91.8 - - 81.8 891.8
rner financial Habihties 19 55.0 4.6 - 59.6 59.6
Total 1,277.4 4.6 0.3 1,282.3 1.282.3

e valug is approximately equal to the carrying values

**n:lide secunty deposits

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as of December 31. 2019 are as

follows
31 Dec 2019
it CHF million Notes Amortised Financial assets/ li-  Financial as-  Total carry- Total fair
cost abilities at fair sets/ liabili- ing value value®
value through ties at fair
profit and loss value
through OCI
~rancial assets
Trade receivables 13 28.4 - - 28.4 254
(1zh and cash equivalents 14 86.7 - - 86.7 B 7
Oker tnancial assets™ 15 451 - - 451 459
Total 160.2 - - 160.2 160.2
=iansial liabilities
2O TOWNTS 17 828.2 - - 828.2 8e82
Trede and other payables 18 165.5 - - 185.5 T65 5
Cenvetve financials instruments 18 - - 0.6 0.6 26
L2ase | apilities g 106.7 - - 106.7 1067
Orher financial liabilities 19 712 52 - 76.4 754
Tctal 1,172.6 5.2 0.6 1177.4 1,177.4

" far vaue.s approximately equal to the carryirg vaiues

ihice security deposits
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The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and other financial assets, trace and
other payables. lease liabilities and other financial liabillities are considered approximately as their fair value.

The carrying amount of berrowings is considered approximate to the fair value as these borrawings are zving
floating rate of interest. The fair value of borrowings having a fixed rate of interest is not materially cifferent to
therr carrying amount,

Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgments and estimates made in determining the fair value of the financial nst-u-
ments that are (a) recognised at fair value and (b} measured at amortised cost and for which fair valuzs are
disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in diter-
mining fair value, the Group has classified its financial instruments into three levels prescribed under tre It RS,
An explanation of each level follows underneath the table {refer significant accounting policies secton xi <

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value as at December 31, 2020:

in CHF miilion Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal

Financial asset measured at amortised cost for which fair -
values are disclosed
Other financial assels ~ security deposits® - - 4.7 4.7

Financial Liabilities measured at fair value through income
statement

Other financial liabilites — contingent consideration™ - - 4.6 4.6

Financial Liabilities measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Derivatives designated as hedges- Interest rate swaps - 0.3 - 0.3

“the amortised cost of security deposits 1s CHF 4.7 mifior
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value as at December 31, 2019:

in CHF million lLevel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial asset measured at amortised cost for which fair
values are disclosed

Other financial assets — security deposits* - - 8.c 3.0

Financial assets measured at fair value through income
statement

Other financial liabilties — contingent consideration™ - - 5.7 5.2

Financial Liablilities measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income

Dervatives designated as hedges- Interest rate swaps - 086 ne
~ the amortised cost of secunty deposits 18 CHF 8.0 million

** the contingent consideration pertains to the acquisitions in 2078
The fair value of security deposits was calculated based on the current lending rate as applicable. They are

classified as levet 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusien of uncbservable inputs incitgirg
counter party credit risks.
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There are no transfers between the different levels during the year 2020 and 2019,

The: following table present the changes in level 3 items for the period ending December 31. 2020 and De-
cember 31, 2019

1 CHE million

Opening balance as at January 1, 2012
Wovement durning the year
Curtency translation

Ciasing balance as at December 31, 2019

Qpening balance as at January 1, 2020

v evament during the year

Currency translation

Closing balance as at December 31, 2020

Valuation technique used to determine fair value

< a

Jzivation technigue used to determine fair value of security de-
BOEIKS

Jzltation technique used to determine fair value of contingent
considerations

LES35ub 1 5ar: —Censohdated fnancial stater.ents 7020

Security De-  Contingent con-

posits sideration
6.4 21.3
17 (16 2)
(0.1 0.1
8.0 5.2
8.0 52
(2.8) -
0.7) {0.6)
4.7 4.8

fair value of interest rate risk 1s catculated at present value of es-
timated future cash flows based on observable yield curves

fair value i3 calculated at present value of estimated future cash
flows basis fulure applicant counts and target achievements as

explained in the share purchase agreements.
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25. Financial risk management

The Group's principal financial liabilities consist of barrowings, trade and other payables, lease liakilties ard
other financial liabilittes. The main purpose of these financial Habilities is to finance the Group's ooeratons.
The Group's principal financial assets include trade receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that are de-
rived directly from its operations and borrowings. The Group also enters into derivative transacticns far ir te-est
rate fluctuations and forward contracts

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liguidity risk. The Group's management overse:s the
management of these risks. The Group's management is supported by the corporate treasury tearr tha: ad-
vises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Group. The corncrate
treasury team provides assurance to the Group's management that the Group's financial risk activitics are
governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured anad ran-
aged in accordance with the Group's policies and risk cbjectives. All derivative activities for risk manzge: iant
purposes are carried out by specialist teams that have the appropriate skills, experience and supe~visicn It s
the Group's pelicy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes should be undertaken.

The Covid-19 pandemic and measures to control the virus, including goverrment travel restrictions and cuar-
antine arders, have had a significant negative impact on the travel industry from mid-March 2020. The an-
demic’s proliferation, concurrent with travel bans. varying levels of governmental restrictions and marcates
glebally to limit the spread of the virus, has dampened applicant demand for our services and impacted vider
consumer sentiment and discretionary spending patterns, all of which have adversely and materially impacted
our operations, liquidity and financial position. In the meanwhile, some travel restrictions have ceer i{ted
during the course of last quarter of the financial year 2020, which has resulted in an increase in our business
volumes particularly for land routes, non-discreticnary visa application types including work, student anc [nng-
term settlement, as well as citizen services offerings such as passport renewals and consumers have beccme
more comfortable in traveling, particularly in land routes. This has led to an increase in the business vo'ures
in the last quarter ended December 31, 2020 Covid-19 vaccines have been approved by some countries n
the [ast quarter of the financial year 2020. Early rollout of the vaccines in larger source and destination mai-ets
such as South Asia, Middle East and Europe during Q1 and Q2 of the financial year 2021 will help the reccvery
of business volumes.

In recent months, there have been instances where cases of Cavid-19 have started to increase again afiera
period of decline which has resulted in bans and lockdowns being reintroduced. There is no certainty by vhen
remaining bans will be lifted, where additional bans may be initiated, or where bans that have been previcusly
lifted will be reinstated due to resurgence of the virus. In addition, there is no precise forward-laoking visirity
intc the short-term changes to consumer travel behaviour patterns when travel bans and other goveryient
restrictions and mandates are fully lifted.

Therefore, the extent of the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on our operations, operating resuits liqu city
and financial positicn are difficult to predict {refer ncte 2 of main accounting principles for details).

The Group does not expect any material adverse financial impact of Brexit on its operations. As per the man-
agement’s assessment, markets seem to be well prepared and both the interest level and the foreign cuirency

levet of GBP are not expected to move materially.

The Board of Directors of VFS Global AG (indirect subsidiary of the Company) reviews and approves pol.c es
for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.
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A. Market risk

Market risk comprises two types of risk: interest rate risk and currency risk. Financial instruments affectad by
market risk include borrowings and derivative financial instruments. The sensitivity analysis has been pre-
pared on the basis that the amount of debt, derivatives and the proportion of financiaf instruments in foreign
currencies are all constant and on the basis of hedge designations in piace of December 31, 2020 and De-
ceriber 31, 2019 respectively.

The analysis excludes the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying values of gratuity and
other post-retirement obligations. provisions, and the non-financial assets and liabilities of foreign operations.

The sensitivity of the relevant conselidated income statement item is the effect of the assumed changes in
respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held as at December 31,
2520 and December 31, 2019.

(i} interest rate risk

The Group is exposed 1o interest rale risk because a significant portion of its borrowings are at fioating interest
rates. The floating rate risk is managed by the Group by the use of interest rate risk contracts, The interest
rate risk contracts include swap on fioating to fixed rate of interest for EUR denominated financial liabilities.
During the current year cap on interest rates for GBP denominated financial liabilities of CHF 131.2 million
and swap on floating to fixed rate of interest for EUR denominated financial liabilittes of CHF 181.7 muliion
have expirad. Currently hedging in place cover approximately 11.3% (2019: 52.6%) of the variable lcan prin-
c pal outstanding. The fixed interest rates of the swaps used to hedge range between 0% and 0.3% (2019
0% to 1.5%) and the variable rates of the [oans are between 0% and 0.7% over the 90 day bank bill rate,
wh ch at the end of the reporting period is 0% (2019: 0.7%). Hedging activities are evaluated regulariy to align
with the interest rate views and defined risk appetile. ensurning the most cost-effective hedging strategies are
acpled. The Group's exposures to interest rate on financial assets and financial liabilities are detailed in the
liquidity risk management section of this note.

The sensitivity analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the liability cutstanding at the end of the reporting
period was outstanding for the whole year.

Cash flow Sensitivity for interest rate
Consolidated income statement is sensitive to higher/ lower interest expense from borrowings as a resull of

caerges in interest rates. Other components of equity changes as a result of an increase/ decrease in the farr
value of cash flow hedges related to borrowings.

impact on earnings before tax Impact on other component ol eyuity

5% bp increase 5% hp decrease 5% bhp increase §% bp decrease
ir SHF millien
December 31, 2020
Gebt instruments {0.3) 0.3 - -
titziest rale swaps” - - .
Cash flow sensitivity {net) (0.3) 0.3 - -
Cocemhber 31, 2019
Zf Biinattuments (0.2} 0.2
riarest rate swaps®
Czsh flow sensitivity (net) (0.2) 0.2 -

T a7 ount is below rounding off norms adopted by the Group.
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The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on currently onserv-
able market envircnment,

{ii) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group's exposure tc the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates
relates primarily to the Group's operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign
currency cther than the functional currency} and the Group's net investments in foreign subsidiaries. "he
major currencies giving rise to currency risk for the Group are the USD, GBP and EUR.

Most of the Group’s operating income and expense exposure is naturaily hedged by setting off receivacles
and payables. The Group does not hedge against the foreign currency risks associated with its net invastient
in foreign entities or the related foreign currency translation of local earnings.

Many of the contracts with government missicns/embassies in Eurgpe and North America set fees ir the
currency of respective governments that the Group then converts into the local currency of the count v of
operation at prevailing exchange rates. These contractual provisions mitigate exposure to foreign currer ¢ es
of the operating countries,

The foliowing significant exchange rates have been applied for the Group's most important currencies:

CHF Year-end rates Average rates

31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019 2020 239
USD 1 ¢.8851 0.9678 0.9384 9934
GBP 1 1.2106 1.2844 1.2038 L2877
EUR 1 1.0814 1.0853 1.0701 112

Foreign currency exposure at the year-end is as follows:

In CHF million 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2018

usp GBP EUR usD GBP EUR
Assets 5.7 1.4 25 9.4 2.8 A7
Liabilities {70.0} (462.2) {(404.6} {124.3) (436.3) (4«13,
Net exposure (84.3) {460.8) (402.1) (114.9) (433.5) {4081}

The above foreign currency exposure is excluding the inter-company receivables, payables, loans and por-
rowings which are eliminated at the consolidated level.

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

A change in the foreign currency positions shown at year-end as a result of +5% or -5% change in curency
exchange rates would have increased or decreased consolidated equity and the Group's net result by the
amounts shown below. This analysis is based on the assumption that all other variables {and interest rates in
particular) remain unchanged.

The consolidated income statement may also be substantially affected by any changes in currency exchange

rates relating to financiai instruments bought and sold within the financial year to which the provisions of I-RS
7 do not apply.
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1 SHE million 31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019
usp GBP EUR usph GBP EUR
Increase by 5%
Iroact on consolidated income statement {3.2) (23.0} (20.1) 15.7) (21.7) 120.4)
Decrease by 5%
Impact on consglidated income statement 3.2 23.0 201 57 217 20.4

The Group’s exposures to other foreign exchange currencies are not material,
B. Liquidity risk

Ligu dity risk is the risk that Group may be unable to meet its financial obligations when these become due for
payment. The liquidity position of the Group is significantly influenced by the service fees collected on visa
applications processed. The Group regularly monitors its liquidity to keep it at adequate levels, with weekly
reports to Chief Financial Officer.

During the financial year 2020, the Group has taken proactive measures by reaching out to various vendors.
lenders and owners due to Covid-19 impact an the business. The Group has undertaken renegotiation with
existing vendors and arranged new funding from owners and lenders to ensure sufficient liquidity to support
the business.

Tre ‘ollowing tables detail the Group's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabiiities
wilh agreed repayment pericds based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities and includes both
est mated interest and principal cash flows. The contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on whicn
the Greup may be required to pay.

in Z-F million Carrying Total Contractual Upto12 1-Zyears 2-5years More than
value cash flow months 5 years
31 Dec 2020
2errowings” 1.007.3 1,163.7 84.5 323 1.036.9 -
Trace and other payables 123.6 123.6 123.6 - - -
.zase labilities 91.8 105.4 43.7 28.3 296 38
Ztner financial liabilities 59.6 89.5 252 42,1 2.2 -
31 Dec 2019
Berrowings 828.2 9855 38.7 32.8 914.0 -
Trace ard other payables 166.1 166.1 166.1 - -
_case |abiities 106.7 122.9 36.7 327 483 52
Oter financial habilities 76.4 78.6 786 - - -
"Cor tractual cashflows includes the principat portion of revolving credit faciltes of CHF 46.8 million (considered \n the up to 12 months bucket). “he

revoning credt fagiites 1s a relling facility and wil ag avalagle tll financ.al year 2023,

The CHF amount for cash flows relating to the foreign currency loan are determined on the basis of the spot
rate as at the statement of financial position date.

The interest payments on variable interest rate loans in the table above reflect market forward interest rates
a:tne reporting date and these amounts may change as market interest rates change. The future cash flows
or ‘he instruments may be different from the amount in the above table as interest rates and exchange rates
or ke relevant conditicns underlying the contingency change. Except for these financial liabilities, it is not

expected that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis could occur significantly earlier, or at significantly
d{ffzrent amounts.
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C. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument cr customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primzavily
trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including other financial assets, deposits with banks and
financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and financial instruments.

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by business units subject to the Group's established policy, procedures and
controf relating to customer credit risk management. Credit risks are limited as applicants pay service (seg
upfront. In case of the government-pay medel. contracts are with globa! clients that are well established Tnly
in the case where operations are outscurced {o FMC's, there is a moderate credit risk. However, thare ars ro
risk cancentrations as the risk is spread across multiple FMC partners.

The Group has used the expected credit foss model to assess the impairment loss or gain on the firacial
assets. The Group uses a provisich matrix to compute the expected credit loss allowance for trade resewa-
bles. The provision matrix takes intc account factors such as historical trends as well as forwa-d luc<irg
information relating to the receivables. The Group does not hold coliateral as security for any financ al asets.
The Group has experienced some delays in the processing and settlements of transactions due to Cowig-1§
pandemic and has assessed the provision matrix (expected credit loss model) as adequate. The GroLp has
evaluated that the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low due to the fact thet thz cus-
tomers are spread across several jurisdictions, (For detailed movement in allowances of credit loss for trace
receivables, refer note 13)

The Group does not expect to recover any amaount from previously written off receivables.
Other financial assets

Other financial assets consist of security deposits and other receivables, which are monitored on regular L asis
by the management with the credit risk associated with the parties. The Group also evaluates the concentra-
tion of risk with other financial assets as low, as its assets are held by entities located in various geograshias.
Based on the credit histery of these other financtal assets, it is expected that these amounts will be recov=rea
as and when due (refer note 15).

Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by the Group’s corporate treasury team in accorcance with
the Group's policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties. The counter-
party with rating of ‘A’ and above is generally accepted. Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Com-
pany's Board of Managers at regular intervals and may be updated throughout the year subject tc apnioval
of the Beard of Directors of VFS Global AG (indirect subsidiary of the Company). The limits are set tc minimise
the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty's potential failure to rake
payments.

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the consolidated statement of finanzial
position as at December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019 is the carrying amounts {refer note 14).

D. Impact of hedging activities

The Group hedging policy allows only effective hedge relationships to be established. Hedge effectveness is
detarmined at the inception of the hedge relationship, and through periodic prospective effectivencss
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ascessments to ensure that the economic relationship exists between the hedged item and hedging instru-
ment. The Group enters into hedge relationships where the critical terms of the hedging instrument matcn
exactly with the terms of hedge item and so qualitative assessment of effectiveness is performed. If changes
in circumstances affect the terms of the hedge item such that critical terms no longer match exactiy with the
critcal terms of hedging instrument, the Group uses the hypothetical derivative method to assess effective-
ness. There was no ineffectiveness recognised in the consclidated income statement during the financial year
2520 and 2019.

{i} Derivative assets and liabilities designated as cash flow hedges

Tre following table indicates the periods in which the cash flows associated with cash flow hedges are ex-
pectad to oceur and the carrying amounts of the related hedging instruments.

ir- SHF rithon Carrying amount Total 1-8 months 6-12 months More than cne
year
Secamber 31, 2020

nizest rate risk® (0.3) {0.3) 0.3) - -
Agsets - - - - -
Lz bhities {0.3) (0.3} {0.3) - -
T ZHF million Carrying amount Total 1-6 months B-12 manths More than one

year
S¢camper 31, 2019

Int2rest rate risk™ (0.6) (0.6) {0.6) -
Assets - . - - -
e illities (0.6} (0.3) (0.6) - -

Tt entersst rate nsk s on hedge instrument wh ch gets reset on quarerly basis

{1y Disclosure of effects of hedge accounting on financial position

In CF million

Typa of Hedge and Nominal Value  Carrying amount of Maturity  Hedge Weighted Change  Change in
Risks Hedging Instru- Date Ratio Average in Fair the value
monts strike  Value of  of hedged

pricefrate  Hedging item

Instru- used as

men the hasis

for recog-

nising

hedge ef-

fective-

ness

December 31, 2020 Asset Liabiiities Assets Liabilities

Cush Flow Hedge

Nov 03,
‘rizrest Rate sk - 1135 - (0.31 2021 .1 0.21% 03
December 31, 2019
Cash Flow Hedge
Nov 03,
Intarest Rate risk - 4355 - (0.5) 2020 1:1 0.58% 0.4

(i1} Disclosure of effects of hedge accounting on financial performance
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In CHF million
Type of Hedge Change in the value of Hedge ineffective- Amount reclassi- Line item affected in Income
the hedging instrument ness recognised in fied from cash  statement because of the ra-
recognised in other Income statement flow hedging classification
comprehensive income reserve to Income
statement
December 31, 2020
Interest rate risk - - (0.4) Frrancia exnr. e
December 31, 2019
Interest rate risk 0.4 - -
{iv] Movements of cash flow hedging reserve and costs of hedging reserve
In CHF million Interest rate risk
Particulars Interest rate Swap  Interes! rate CAP
(i) Cash flow hedging reserve
As at January 1. 2019 0.9
Adof {less): Changes in fair value of interest rate swaps 0.2
As at December 31, 2019 0.7 -
As al January 1, 2020 0.7 -
Add/ (lessy: Changes in fair value of interest rate swaps (0.4)
As at December 31, 2020 0.3 -
{il} Costs of hedging reserve
As at January 1, 2019 -
Add/ {less) Deferred forward points relating to foreign exchange forward contracts - i
As at December 31, 2019 - 1y
As at January 1, 2020 - 151"
Add/ (less): Deferred forward points relating to foreign exchange forward contracts B o1
As at Decembar 31, 2020 -
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26. Related parties

The Comparny is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Kiwi IV and is uftimately controlled by the funds EQT VIl {Nc.1)
LP and EQT VIl (No.2) LP managed by EQT Partners. a private equity firm headquartered in Stockhalm,
Swaden.

Transactions during the year with Kiwi IV and above holding entities are shown as below:

in CHF millian 2020 2018
Interest expense 26
Borowings 1431
Japital contribution 1.7 i3

Balances as at 31 December with Kiwi IV and above helding entities are shown as below:

In CHF million 2020 20149
Horrowings 145.7
“rade payables 49 4.3

Key management personnel compensation

The total compensation (including employer’s contributions to social security and pension funds) paid to mem-
bars of the VFS Global Executive Board, which is included as part of personnel expense, consist of:

1 2HF million
2020 2019

Short-term empicyee benefits 4.4 136

Key management personnel compensation excludes the impact of actuarial valuation of pension and leave
encashment. Bonus is disclosed based on the actual payment during the year.
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27. Contingent liabilities and other commitments
27(a). Contingent liabilities

The Group has following contingent liabifities:

In CHF miltion

31 Dec 2020 3 e 201N
Taxation matters under dispute 3.9 4.5
Claim against the Group not acknowledged as debt (pending litigations) 2.8 3.
Total 6.5 7.5

Taxation related contingent liabilities comprise of matters that may result in possible outflow to respective tax
authorities in various jurisdictions,

The Group has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for wiere
provisions are required and disclosed as contingent liabilities where applicable and guantifiable. The G-oup
does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have material adverse effects on its consclideted finan-
cial statements.

27(b). Other commitments

In CHF million
31 Dec 2020 37 Des 2C13

Bank guarantees 5.9 2.3

Bank guarantees mainly consist of finarcial guarantees given to various government missions/embass-es
warldwide for revenues collected on behalf of the government by the Group.

Further, the Group has also given perfermance bank guarantees amounting to CHF 39.0 million (Deceriber
31,2019 CHF 37.4 million) 1o varicus government missions/embassies to ensure contractual compliarces.

27(c). Capital commitments

In CHF million

31 Dec 2020 31 Ler 2013
Capital commitments 0.8
Share purchase commiiments 0.2 0.2

The Group has entered into share purchase agreement in December 2019 to acquire additional 6 4% snare
capital of Docswallet subject to fulfiment of certain conditions which are expected to be compieted i1 financial
year 2021 (refer note 1).
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28. Events after statement of financial position date

There are no material events after the consolidated statement of financial position date.
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Interest in subsidiaries and joint ventures
34 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019
Activity Currency  Paid-in share capital Invesiment Paid-in share capita! Investment Cansyidaton
in % in %
Algeria
/T3 Glornal Services Algena Vv Dzo 1,000.000 49 1,000,000 a5 o
SARL?
Albania
*/F Services (Albama) Limited Ay LEK 100 100 100 120 S
Angola
G.ocbal-VFS-Angola  Services vV AQA 165 057 100 185.057 100 C
(U LDA
Argentina
VFS Del Plata Services W ARS 12,000 100 12,000 107 [
S.A Buenos Aires
Armenia
WES Globah LLT Yerevan i MWD 50 000 100 50,000 400 I
Australia
VFS Services Australia \ AUD 2 100 2 109 °
Pty Ltd. Sydney
VFS Tasheel Interna- v AUD 100 100 100 100 c
tional Pty Ltd
VASCO Worldwide Pty s AUD 100 100 100 100 <
Ltd
Azerbaijan
VF Services Azerbajan v EUR 1.c00 100 1,000 100 o
LLC Baku
Bahrain
WF Services Bahrain v BHD - - 50,000 100 C
SPC. Manama *
VFS Tasheel interna- V BHD 20,000 100 20 000 107 >
tional WL
VFS Glabal Bahrain Y BHOD 20000 100 20.000 100 o)
W.LL {erstwhile A E
mad Modern Business
Solutions WL L)
Vega Modern Businegss s BHD 20.000 100 20.900 108 c

Solutions W.L.L
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31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019
Activity Currency  Paid-in share capital Investment Paid-in share capital  Investment Consolidation
in % in %
Bangfadesh
vF¢ Bangladesh Private v BOT 10,000,000 100 10,000,000 100 C
L =vted Dhaka
Helarus
WEEBY LLC Mnsk vV BYR 535,542 00N 536,512 100 C
277 wel Imernanegnal, Lta 5 BYR 5C0 100 500 100
i3 azil
WFE Grasil Servicos de v BRL 10a 100 100 100 C
Prauaracio de Documen-
tos .tda . Sde Paulo
Lirvnei
Y ¥ Tasheef (B) Sdn Bhd v BHD 2 100 2 100 C
t.ulgaria
WvEE DBlokal Bulgana v BGN 2.00C 100 2000 100 C
ECQO0
tiounia
WFE Glokal BRH v BamM 1,000 100 4.000 120 o)
Cameronn
Wi & Glokal Cameroon W CFA 502 0co 100 $00.000 100 C
SAbL
Cirada
Vi i Sevices (Canada) W CAD 2 100 1 100 c
e Ottawa
Cdayman Islands
VES Cayman Limited <o uso - - 0.01 100 c
Cecrge Tawn ®
Thiie
VoS Services Chile SPA W cLrP 52,000 1oc 50,000 100 c
Saruega Centro
Cnina
YEE Business Infor- W CNY tL27 882 100 1127 862 100 C
maro Zonsulting Co
w1 Shanghar
VLECC Erterprise Man- S UsD 500,00¢C 100 500 000 140 c
ajzz nz2rt Jansulling
13vargnan Co Ltd
Soalsmbis
VWiD Cclerrbia 3.A.8 W cop 1C02 600 100 1000060 109 C
Bgpata
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Cyprus
Aviga Services Lid
Wisapro Limited

WS Global Cyprus Lim-
ted *IErsswnde Eckron Eo-
terpr ses L6 )2

Czech Republic

VFS Global Czech 5.0
Prague

Denmark

VF Services Denmark
ApS, Copenbagen

Dominican Republic

VS DOMINICANA.
5 R.L. Santo Daminge

Ecuador

VIEFFESGLOBAL Foue-
gar S.A , Quito

Egypt

VE Services Egypt LLC,
Cairo®

VES Tasheel Interna-
tional Limited Liabity Co

VASCO Worldwige Lim-
ited Liabilty Co

A] Etimad Modern Busi-
ness Solutions Company

The Professional for Ser-
vices {Vega) &

Estoma

W S Global Estonia GU

Ethiopia

VF Services {Ethiopia)
Prvate Lirmited Addis Ab-
aba

Finland

VE Services Finfand Oy

Gabon

WE Services Gabon
SARL, Librevile

Activity

Y

Currency

EUR
EUR
EUR

CZK

DKK

DOP

EGP

EGP

EGP

EGP

ECGF

EUR

ETB

EUR

GFA

Kot VFS Sup 1 S A - Consohdated financial staterents 2020
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Paid-in share capital

4000
530

7760651

2,500

50 000

100.000

100 000

100,000

100 000

50,000

2,500

950 000

2,500

1,000,000

VES.GLO3AL

31 Dec 2019

Investrment Paid-in share capital

in %

100
100

100

100

120

100

100

100

*00

100

100

100

1Q0

100

100

1000
500

1,000

50.000

100000

800

1.000

100,000

100,000

100.000

50,000

2500

950 000

2,500

1,000,000

[sr.:oof
Investment Cansolidation
in "fu
10 [t
100 =
100 2
107 C
100 i
100 C
100 <
10 o}
100 Z
4109 C
4100 G
138 C
100 i
109 2
100 c
100 <
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EST. 2001
31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019
Activity Currency  Paid-in share capital Investment Paid-in share capital Investment Cansoligdation
in % in %

Germany
VF denices Germany W EUR 25,000 100 25,000 100 C
L' Berlin
W& T asheel Interna- v EUR 25008 100 25000 100 9
tias il SmoH
VALCO Waorldwide S EJR 12,500 100 12,500 100 c
Cmoh

Gnana
Ve (Gnana) Private Lim- W GHG 47,000 100 47,000 100 C
txd Accra
VF L lasheel Interna- v GHC 1,115,100 100 1.115 100 100 C
tanval Limiteg

reece
vi ¢ Glocal Services Hel- v EUR 1 100 1 100 C
las 3ingle Member PC
Atrons

Guratemala
VIE “EE, Sociedad Anon- v GTQ 5000 100 5000 100 c
ira (Guatemala

Hait
i & Glowal Services Hat W HTG 25.000 100 25000 100 9
5 A Por-au-Prince

Hoang Kong
VB lenaces (hangkong) W HKD 7 800 100 7 800 140 C
Pyvi mited, Hong Kong

Irdia
wFE& Data Processing v INR 85328440 100 85,328,490 100 o4
Fut L, Mumba:
Vi & Global Edu Suppoit vV INR +00.000 100 100.000 100 C
Ser.tes Pyt Ld, Mum-
pa
VEE Glotal Serviges Py v INR ©7 502 000 100 97 500 000 100 o}
- Moroa
w=C lma Services Pri- i INR 100 060 49 100.000 4% o
var Limited Mumbai’
v -Asgist Services Private vV INR €043 877 100 6.043 877 ‘00 o}
Lrmed®
T™& (.onsuitancy and v INR 4.502.000 100 4,500 Q00 00 c
Sevees Private Limited
T3 Urterpnses Private Y INR $8.267 750 100 89 267 750 100 c
Levted
Boet v sa (India) Pr- Y INR 13900 100 10.000 100 C
vaw L.mted
v f CC Worldwide India 3 INR 4€ 572000 100 48512 000 100 C
Frvats Lomited
Tra-a<an \VWeb lnnova- S INR ‘850485 a1 166,095 91 c

t37s Prvate Limited ©

i VFSSub | Sart — Consohdated financial statements 2020 Page 53123
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ES™ :001
31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019
Activity Currency  Paid-in share capital  Investment Paid-in share capital Investment Cons slidaton
in % in%

Indonesia
PT VFS Services indone- v DR 5 500 000 000 100 5.500,000,000 100 3
sia. Jakarta
BT VFS Tasheel Indone- W 1IDR 20,394 629 415 67 20 394 629 41 57 =
s1a’ 5

Irag
Al Etimad Mukawimatd Y 14D - - 1,000 000 100 o1
Al Ettrmad Business Ser- v 1aD - - 7.000 000 109 C
vices Company *

Ireland
VIS Cansulting treland Vv EUR 100 100 100 160 o
Ltd. Dublin

ltaly
VFS Tasheel Interna- v EUR 10,000 100 10 000 100 C
tional S.R.

lvory Coast
VFS Céte diveire LLC \ XCF 1,000,000 100 1,000,000 100 o}
SAR.L. Adian

Japan
VF Services Japan LLC. Y JPY 5 000 0G0 100 5 000.000 100 ol
Tokyo
VFS Tasheel Interna- A% JPY 10C0 000 100 1,000,000 103 z
tional Kabushiki Kaisha

Jordan
Glebal Amman for Admin- v JOD 50.000 100 50,000 100 C
strative Services LLC,
Amman
WVasco Worldwide — Jor- 5 Joo 50 000 100 50.000 100 C
danlLLC @
VF§ Tasheel Interna- v JCD 50 000 100 50 000 100 o
tioral Jordan LLC
VASCO General Trading S oD 10,000 100 10,000 100 G
Companry LLC €
Vega Modern Business 5 Jon - - 100.000 100 c
Solutrons Jordan *

Jersey
VFS Global Jersey Pr- co GBP 399.353 115 100 396 353,115 101 G
vate Limited'
VFS Holdings Lt * co GBP . - 10,000 100 C
{Erstwhile ¥uon Holdings
Lta})

Awe VES Sub | S.arl - Consolidated financ al statements 2020 Prac 12k




P aEa

UVfS. ) VFS GLOBAL

EST. 2001
31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019
Activity Currency  Paid-in shars capital Investment Paid-in share capital Investment Consolidation
in % in
A 1zakhs an
W Serviees Kazakhstan v KZT 2,400 0c0 100 2400.000 100 C
LLE pmlmaty
S7A Irermational = K 4] KZT 153 480 100 159,480 100 C
(L1g) 2
Pulas Kazakhstan LLC v KZT 100 99 100 99 c
Aenya
YEE (Kerya) Lid. Nairob v KES 100 0C0 100 100,000 100 C
rasovo
wEE Glokal Services Ko- A9 EUR 100 100 108 100 o
s2v) LG
rorinati
T senvices (Kinbat) v AUD 42,000 100 40 000 100 c
L ted
Ayrgystan
vEE Glokal (Central Asia) A kGS 1000 100 - - C
L.
. wvait
YES Kuwat General v KWD 52 000 49 50,000 49 c
T-aun.g Company LLC ?
Al Eumag Kuwait Co. @ V KWD 15,000 100 15,000 100 c
L atvia
YEE Global Services Late v EUR 2800 100 2 BoQ 100 C
va 3la
L 2hanon
Vil Glokal Services Leb- v LEP £402.000 100 5,000,000 100 C
a~2y SARL Beirut
L thoani.
VI Glakal Services Lith- W EUR 2500 100 2 500 100 C
vana LA3 Vinaus
L emBourg
Ky YFS Subll Sart CQ CHF 4€ 833,983 100 45 B38 383 100 C
K NFSSUBINSarl'™” CO CHF 965 860 648 00 - - C
l.adagascar
VEE Global Madagascar Y MGA z LDy 00D 100 2 000,000 100 c
Sokl
“aliysia
WES (VALAYSIA) SON W MYR £00 00T 70 500 00U 70 c

Koy " F3Suk!Sarl - Consolidated financial statestents 2020 Page 1COitid




VES.GLOBAL

EST. 2001
31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019
Activity Currency  Paid-in share capital Investment Paid-in share capital Investment Consnlidation
in % in %
BHD. Kuala Lumpur?
Mauritius
YF Services (Mauntius) v MUR 750,000 100 750,000 107 c
Pte _td . Port Louis
Vasco Worldwide Maun- s Usp 2 100 2 100 C
tus &
VFS Tasheel lnterna- v UsD 2 100 2 100 °
tionai Mauritius
Mexico
Visa Facilitation Services A MXN 3.000 100 3.000 100 c
Mexico 5. DeR.L De
CV  Mexico City
Maongalia
VFS LLC Ulaanbaatar v UsD 100.000 100 100,000 100 C
Morocco
VF3 GCC Morocco, Cas- WV MAD 300,000 100 300,000 100 [
ablanca
Myanmar
VFS Global Myanmar W usp 25,000 100 25,000 100 o}
Limited. Yangon
Nauru
TT Services Mauru Lim- A AUD 10,000 100 10.000 100 C
ited inc
New Zealand
VS Services New Zea- v NZD 2 100 2 100 c
land Limited. Auckland
TT Services New Zealand v NZD 1,335,000 100 1.335.000 100 c
Ltd.
Netherlands
VFS Tasheel Interna- co EUR 100 100 100 102 Z
tional 8.V ‘
Cutch Dubal Holdings co EUR 100 100 100 109 C
Bv®
Cubsi Services Holdings CO - - 100 - 1040 C
Cooperative U.A €
Nigeria
VF Globai Services Nige- A4 NGN 10,000,000 100 10,000,000 100 c
ria Limited, Lagos
VFS Tasheel Nig..Ltd W NGN 10,000,000 100 10,000,000 100 c
VASCO Business Con- s NGN 10,000,000 100 10,000,000 100 3
cepts Lig @
Vega Modern Business S NGN 10,000,000 100 10.000.000 100 [

K VFS Sub 1 S arl - Consoldated financial statemerts 2020 Fag I0E
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£5T. 2001
31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019
Activity Currency  Paid-in share capital investment Paid-in share capital  Investment Consotidation
in% in %
Sclutiors @
C:ran
VF services LLCY W OMR +50.000 70 150 000 70 C
e
YEE Per. S AC., Lima \' PEN 1,000 100 1.000 100 C
BEhilippines
YFE Services Phiippines v PHP ©,£09,80C 100 9.509,600 100 c
Frvata, Inc.. Malvat City
Biomet visa Services Phi- v PHP £,948.000 100 8.948.000 100 c
loaes Frvate, ne.
vasz e Worlaw.de Philip- 3 PHP 8 943,0C0 100 8,948,000 00 C
preslre
?ilang
V=& Clokat Poland W PLA 5,000 100 50900 100 C
Sp L C Warsaw
Puregal
VF S Glokal Services Por- W EUR 3,000 100 5 000 100 C
tugal Uripessoal. LDA
Liston
Qatar
VFE Global Services Vv QAR “03 000 49 100 000 45 c
CelallC 8
VF& Glokal Services 4 8D 5,000 100 5,009 100 o}
Gfe . LC
Samama
Vi Glotal Services W RON 20C 100 200 100 c
RUA SR Bucharest
R.asstka
Vvioervices LLC. Mos- v RUB “E 423375 100 15 428,375 100 C
CaN
Irte cam L.C, Moscow® v RUB - - 4,200.000 100 C
Yosiwave LLC Moscow v RUB 2071625 100 3071625 100 c
ST4 terational Lid S RUB 20,303 99 20,303 39 c
Folens Rus Limited Lia- vV RUB 11000 98 10 000 9¢ c
Bty Co
Saud' Arabia
Atyaar Modern Commer- Cco SAR 1009000 100 1000000 100 C
ca Sarvices Limited
VF Services Saud co SAR 1.002.060 100 1.000.000 100 c
Neooen Taveller Ser GO SAR 1000 000 100 1000 0Co 100
vees Jompany
Kiy 3 5up: 34t - Consongated financial stater s ; 029
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ES™ D061
31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019
Activity Currency  Paid-in share capital  Investment Paid-in share capital Investment Cansaudat on
in % in %
Samoa
TT Services Samoa Ltd v WST 1.000 100 1,000 100 <
Senegal
VFS Senegal LLC Dakar v CFA 115,620,000 100 115,620 000 100 !
Serbia
VWFS Global SR LLC Vs RSD 1.000 100 7.000 103 >
Singapore
VFS (Singapore) Pte Ltd v SGD 100 000 100 100.000 100 ot
Singapore
Biomet Services Pte. Lid. co 5GD §,687 949 100 6 B687.94¢ 100 [
VFS Tasheel Interna- v G0 100,000 100 100,000 100 c
tional PTE. Ltd
Vasco Worldwide PTE S SGOD 100 000 100 100.000 120 z
Ld
Sauth Africa
VF& Visa Pracessing V ZAR 300,000 100 300,000 100 o}
(South Africa) (Pty) Ltd..
Pretona’
VFS Tasheet RSA (Pty) v ZAR 100,000 100 100.000 100 o}
Ltd
VASCO Worlawide RSA S ZAR - - 1,000 100 G
{Pty) Lid *
Sauth Korea
VF Services South Korea, v KRW 350.000.000 100 350,000.000 100 [
LLC Seoul
Vasce Korea Ltd® 5 KRW - - 10,000.000 100 c
VFS Tasheel Korea Lid W KRW 200.430,000 100 200 430,000 100 [
Spain
VFS Glabal Spain, S L. v EUR 3000 100 3000 100 o
Swaeaden
VFS Tasheel Interna v SEK 50,000 100 50,000 103 c
tional AB
TT Services AB v SEK 504,600 90 504 600 99 c
Switzeriand
VFS Global AG (erseile co CHF 100,000 100 100,000 100 C
VF S Global Holding AG}
VFS Global Investment Cco CHF 3,998,400 100 3,998.400 100 o
AG "
KAM Gicbal AG® CO CHF - - 1,000,000 107 Cc

L VS Sub | S arl. - Consolidated financial statements 2020 Fage " 5108
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EST. 2001

31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019
Activity Currency  Paid-in share capital investment Paid-in share ¢apital Investment Consclidation
in % in %
S tanka
WwEE Lanka (Private) Lim- S\ LKR 5000020 100 5.000 029 100 C
ited Colombo
TT ienices Larka (Pr- % LKR 5,000,000 50 5,000,000 50 C
¥ ) i tedd
L F& Yasheelinterna- A LKR 102.000 100 100,000 100 Cc
ti31al 5L (Prvate) Limited
Bioret V sa Services \4 LKR 30,000,010 100 30.000 010 100 C
Lan-a (Prvate) Limitea
Sdriname
v Glokal Services Su- v SRD 2,500 100 2500 100 C
nianz N v,
Taiwean
WIS Taman Lid Taipei v TWD 1C.002.000 100 10 000.000 100 C
fhailand
VFE {Tnaland} Ltd. \ THB 2¢.C02.000 49 20 000 Q00 49 o)
Bangkox
Vasie Worldwide Tha S THB 100.009 43 100.000 A% 9]
Co td
Turkey
vF /1sa Consultancy Ser- vV TRY 125.000 100 125,000 100 C
vees Jtd
Tunisia
& Gieta Tunisia v TNG 1,000 100 10Q0 100 c
vega Modern Business S TND 25,000 100 20.000 100 C
2ol wors Corrpany &
Lyanda
VP& {Jgarda) Private Li- v UGX §C 002 00C 100 90 000,000 100 C
nred Kampala
Jdrraine
VI olensulting services W UAH 43,000 100 40 000 100 C
(uane) LLC, Kiev
! 1ited A-ab Emirates
VFE{GZC)ILLC, Dubar'® W AED 300000 49 300,600 4G C
WEE Tasheel Interna- co AED “§.373.000 100 18,376 600 100 <
t3nal BMCC, Dubal’
VAL CC Worldwide co AED 18 378,000 100 18,376.000 100 C
ChZC. Duba
\5E Cranwanich DMCC v AED - - 50,000 50 E
Fuo Srodn (FZE) 2 Co AED 152,000 100 150,000 <00 c
TT einatonal Services W AED 153000 49 150,000 49 c
Bro e-..C.-8
Vi Avarldwide Co AED 24 425000 100 24,425 000 100 C
tolargs o’
A P33 8ublSar. - Conscldated financial statemen:s 7020 Pe
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£5 90
31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019
Activity Currency  Paid-in share capital Investment Pajd-in share capital Investment Consolidation
in % in %
Vega Modern Business g AED 300.000 100 300 000 101 >
Solutions Company &
Vasco Tournism LLC - S AED 300,000 49 300 000 49 o}
VETI Cocument Clearing v AED 300 0GQ 49 300.Q00 49 o
Services LLC 2
VASCO Worldwide s AED 300 000 49 300.000 43 iz
Gereral Trading LLC ?
Probitras Global Ltd @< W AED 50 000 80 50,000 80 o
United Kingdom
VF Services (UK Ltg, v GBP 25,001 100 25.001 109 [
Londer’
VFS Global Services ca GBP 15,000 000 100 16,000 000 ‘00 o}
P.C, Lonaon’
Esper Services Lid ¥ co GBP - - 100 T0n ~
VYDash Limited W GBP 50,000 100 50 000 100 C
TT Visa Services Limited V GBP 2 100 2 oo C
Vasco Worldwide Limited S GBP 1 100 1 100 o
RNT Ltd # v GBP - - 1 100 >
usa
VFS Services [USA). Inc., W Usn 7.805.000 100 5,000 100 [
Washington, B.C
TT Visa Services Inc. v uso 1.000 100 1,000 100 [}
Uzhekistan
VFS Global Services v uzs 221,726.340 100 221,726 340 402 c
UBKN LLC. Tashkent®
‘Erstwhite xnown as RNT So-
lutions Lid
Palans Visa LLC v uzs § 000,000 99 8.000.000 k] C
Venezuela
VF Servicios VZLA, C A Y VEB 20.000 100 20,000 100 Cc
Caracas
Vietnam
VFS Global Vietnam v YND 1 000.000.000 100 1,000.000.000 109 Z
Company Limited
Vanuatu
TT Services Vanuatu v Vuv 10,000 100 10.000 100 0!
Limited
Yemen
Al Eimad Modern Busi- i TNR 8,000,000 100 8.000.000 100 =

ness Solutions Company

" Shares of legal entity have been pledged as at the staterrent of financial position date as secanty to the financial hability of Kiwi Sub il S.a.- 11170/ ¢ a1c
2019.

- The Group controis the fallowing entities as the Group 18 exposed to or has right to, vanable refurrs from its involvement with the entity and 1as the atilty
10 aflect those returns through its power to direct the activities of the entties even though the Group 1s holding less than 50% of the snarghoang F tier
in mast of the above cases. the Group has the night to receive ail vanable returns and hence ro hNCI has been considered for the same,

< WFS Sub | S arl - Consohdated financ.al satements 2020 tag: T O3JE
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£57.200¢

*ert pes iqgudated duning the year

®dur ng the year 2020 KAM Global AG had been merged into VF3 Glabal investment AG.
¢ ent hes acquired in 2019 (refer note 1)

?revs ertives

fdormant entities

2 r the process of iquidation

Aeflectve Jaruary 01, 2019, this entity has been considered as joint venture

v

At

73 Corporate (holding cornpanies)

v Apnl cation processing services

s Reta | segment of value added services
Gon olgation

C F by consohdated

E Azcounted using equity method

Kia F33uk 1S Arl - Consclidated financial statements 2020 Page 1C5/1.9
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30. Non GAAP financial measures

The following tables reconcile EBITDA as reported in the cansolidated income statement to Operatirg
EBITDA. Operating EBITA, Operating Cash Flow and Cperating Cash Conversion ratio. In addition, Net [iett,
Nan-Operating tems and Net Working Capital workings are also introduced below. For the definitions of these
non GAAP financial measures refer to significant accounting policies note (xxiii).

The following table represents Operating EBITDA.

In CHF miltion 2020 269
EBITDA (55.8) 2131
Add. Non-Cperating ltems (refer table below) 16.0 21.8
Operating EBITDA {39.8) 240.0

The following table represents Operating EBITA:

In CHF millian 2020 2019
EBITDA (55.8) 218
Less:

Depreciation (refer note 8/9) (57.8) (BZ.5)
Amaortisation of other intangible assets (refer note 10) (6.5) (£ 8
Impairment of cther intangible assets (refer note 10} (4.8 -
Add:

Non-Operating ltems {refer table below) 21.9 226G
Operating EBITA (103.0} 172.4

The following table represents Operating Cash Flow and Operat-
ing Cash Canversion ratio:

In CHF millien 2020 209
Operating EBITDA (39.8) 2410
Less,

Addition in property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (refer note 8/10) (15.7) (44.7)
Lease payments (including interest) (refer note 9) (31.0) (47 4)
Change in Net Working Capital (refer table beiow) (8.7) 247
Operating Cash Flow (96.2) 177.6
Operating Cash Flow (a) {96.2) 177.6
Operating EBITDA less lease payments (including interest) (b} {70.8) 197 6
Operating Cash Conversion ratio (¢c=a/b}* - 39.3%

*Operating Cash Conversion ratio not calculated due to |oss in the financial year 2020

Kiw WES sub | 8 4rl ~ Consolidated financial statements 2020 ago “9p




The following table represents Net Debt:

1 SHE milon

Mon-current borrowings

{ urrent borrowings
Non-current lease habilities
Current lease liabilities
Less:

Cash and cash eguivalents
Net Debt

The following table represents the details of Non-Operating ltems:

In ZHF mullion

Iransaction costs related lo business combinations and divestirent of legal enti-
ties

Start-up costs and losses for new ventures or for new business initiatives
Men-cperating costs/ (income) for non-recurring or unusual items

( csis related to non-operating projects

Cestrelated to Covid-19 {non-recurmng}*

Total Non-Cperating tems

imaact upto,
FEITDA

Depreciation, amortisation and Impairment

VFS.GLOBAL

31 Dec 2020

9447
82.6
51.4
40.4

{135.3)
963.8

2020
0.8

23

6.7

12.0
21.9

16.0
5.9

EST. 2001

31 Dec 2019

3204
7.8
713
34

{86 7)
848.2

219
0.7

* Cost related to Covid-18 {non-recurring} includes the impairment charge of CHF 4.8 million on Imang:ble assets based on revised busmess plan jue 10

irreest of Covid-19 {refer note 10),

The following table represents the change in Net Working Capital:

[ ZH= million

Trage recevables

trner current financial assets
Olner current assets

Total current assets

Trace and other payables

Otner current liabilites

Less: payables to holding company (refer note 26)
Total current liabilities

fet Working Capital (current assets less current labilities)
Change in Net Working Capital

Kiv =330k 1 Sarl - Conschdated financial staterrants 5020

31 Dec 2020

16.0
20.5
19.1
55.6

123.6
47.3
4.9

166.0

{110.4)
(.7}

31 Dec 2019

28.4
223
26.9
79.6

1361
37.49
4.3)
199.7

z0 1)
24,7

Peage "C&/1.2



